
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

508 East Tyler St. | Athens, Texas 75751 | P 903.675.5131 | F 903.675.7562 

NOTICE TO PUBLIC  
NOTICE OF MEETING VIA FACEBOOK LIVE 

Notice is hereby given In accordance with order of the Office of the Governor issued March 19, 
2020, the City Council of the City of Athens, Texas will conduct its Regular meeting scheduled 
at 5:30 p.m. on Monday, March 23, 2020 in the Derek D. Daniels Conference Room of the 
Athens Partnership Center, 201 West Corsicana St, Athens, TX via Facebook Live in order to 
advance the public health goal by avoiding social gatherings in groups of more than 10 people to 
slow the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID-19) [There will be no public access to the location 
described above.]   
 
This notice and meeting agenda, and the agenda packet, are posted online at 
https://www.athenstx.gov/resources/2017-city-council-agendas 
 
The public can participate by going to the following link  
https://www.facebook.com/CityofAthensTexas/   

The public will be permitted to offer public comments by sending an email to 
citysecretary@athenstx.gov as provided by the agenda and as permitted by the presiding officer 
during the meeting. 
 
A recording of the Facebook Live meeting will be made and will be available to the public in 
accordance with the Open Meetings Act upon written request. 
 

1) Invocation  
 

2) Pledge of Allegiance  
 

3) Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 

4) Mayor, City Council and/or City Manager updates involving Community Events 
and issues of Public Safety  

 
5) Public Communications 

“Pursuant to Texas Government Code section 551.007, members of the public may 
speak on an agenda item during the public communication section of the meeting 
or at the time the agenda item is called for discussion by the Mayor. Speakers shall 
be given three (3) minutes to speak.  A speaker needing a translator and/or 
interpreter may be given six (6) minutes to speak. Members of the public wishing 
to address the Council on non-agenda items may do so pursuant to the same time 
constraints as agenda items. The Council will not comment on items not on the 
agenda; however, the Council may refer the item to City Staff for research, 
resolution or referral of the matter to the Council as a future agenda item.” 
 



 

6) Consent Agenda 
(All matters listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be 
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless 
requested by a member of the City Council. The item may subsequently be removed 
from the Consent Agenda to be considered separately.) 
 
a) Consider approving minutes of the March 9, 2020 Regular Session 
b) Consider a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a grant agreement 

with The Ginger Murchison Foundation and accept the contribution of $2.5 
million dollars for the Cain Center Construction 

c) Consider a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract and 
agreement with Henderson County for Rural Fire Protection  

d) February 2020 Monthly Revenue and Expense Report 
 

7) Hear update on Cain Center Project – [E. Borstad] 
 

8) Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Berry and 
Clay Construction for a guaranteed maximum price of  $7,590,016.26 for 
construction of  the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center – [E. Borstad] 

 
9) Discuss postponing the City of Athens General Election scheduled to be held on 

Saturday, May 2, 2020 until Tuesday, November 3, 2020  
 

10) Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a 
Resolution extending the City of Athens Disaster Declaration issued on March 19, 
2020 due to the imminent threat to Public Health and Safety as a result of the 
spread of the Coronavirus (COVID – 19), Epidemic, as declared by the World 
Health Organization as a Pandemic on March 11, 2020 – [E. Borstad] 
 

11) Consider final reading of an Ordinance concerning a request from Triton Athens I, 
LLC for approval of a site plan amendment for Lots 1-5, Block 1 of the Triton 
Athens Subdivision, R.A. Clark Survey A-171, also known as 1006, 1010 and 1012 
East Tyler Street 
 

12) Executive Session Pursuant to the Texas Government Code, Section 551.087 
(Deliberation Regarding Economic Development Negotiations; Closed Meeting) 
Deliberations regarding negotiations with the following prospects: 
a) Prospect #1802 
b) Prospect #1803 

13) Consider action resulting from deliberations in Executive Session Pursuant to the 
Texas Government Code, Section 551.087 (Deliberation Regarding Economic 
Development Negotiations Closed Meeting) Deliberations regarding negotiations 
with the following prospects: 
a) Prospect #1802 
b) Prospect #1803 



 

 
14) Mayor and City Council’s request for future agenda items 

 
15) Adjourn 
 

Executive Session (Closed Meeting): Pursuant to the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code, Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.073, 551.074, 551.076, 551.087, 418.183(f), 
and 418.106(d) & (e). Refer to posted list attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
 
If during the course of the meeting covered by this notice, the City Council should determine that 
a closed or executive meeting or session of the City Council or a consultation with the attorney for 
the City should be held or is required, then such closed or executive meeting or session or 
consultation with attorney as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government 
Code § 551.001 et. seq., will be held by the City Council at the date, hour and place given in this 
notice as the City Council may conveniently meet in such closed or executive meeting or session 
or consult with the attorney for the City concerning any and all subjects and for any and all 
purposes permitted by the Act, including, but not limited to, the following sanctions and purposes:  
 
Texas Government Code Section:      
  § 551.071 - Private consultation with the attorney for the City.    
  § 551.072 - Discussing purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property. 
  § 551.074 - Discussing personnel or to hear complaints or charges against personnel or      
                     officials. 

 “PURSUANT TO SECTION 30.06, PENAL CODE (TRESPASS BY LICENSE HOLDER WITH A    
CONCEALED HANDGUN), A PERSON LICENSED UNDER SUBCHAPTER H, CHAPTER 411, 
GOVERNMENT CODE (HANDGUN LICENSING LAW), MAY NOT ENTER THIS PROPERTY 
WITH A CONCEALED HANDGUN.” 

“DE CONFORMIDAD CON LA SECCIÓN 30.06, CÓDIGO PENAL (ESTAR EN ESTA PROPIEDAD 
POR TITULAR DE LA LICENCIA CON UNA PISTOLA OCULTA), UNA PERSONA CON 
LICENCIA BAJO EL SUBCAPÍTULO H, CAPÍTULO 411, CÓDIGO DE GOBIERNO (LEY DE 
LICENCIAS ARMA DE FUEGO), NO PUEDE ENTRAR EN ESTA PROPIEDAD CON UNA 
PISTOLA OCULTA.” 

"PURSUANT TO SECTION 30.07, PENAL CODE (TRESPASS BY LICENSE HOLDER WITH AN 
OPENLY CARRIED HANDGUN), A PERSON LICENSED UNDER SUBCHAPTER H, CHAPTER 
411, GOVERNMENT CODE (HANDGUN LICENSING LAW), MAY NOT ENTER THIS PROPERTY 
WITH A HANDGUN THAT IS CARRIED OPENLY"  

“DE CONFORMIDAD CON LA SECCIÓN 30.07, CÓDIGO PENAL (ESTAR EN ESTA PROPIEDAD 
POR TITULAR DE LA LICENCIA CON UNA PISTOLA EN PLENO VISTA), UNA PERSONA CON 
LICENCIA BAJO EL SUBCAPÍTULO H, CAPÍTULO 411, CÓDIGO DE GOBIERNO (LEY DE 
LICENCIAS ARMA DE FUEGO), NO PUEDE ENTRAR EN ESTA PROPIEDAD CON UNA 
PISTOLA EN PLENO VISTA”  



REGULAR SESSION 

 

MARCH 9, 2020 

 

The City Council of the City of Athens met in Regular Session on Monday, March 9, 2020, 5:30 

p.m. in the Derek D. Daniels Conference Room of the Athens Partnership Center, 201 West 

Corsicana St., Athens, Texas, with the following members present to-wit: 

 

Monte Montgomery, Mayor 

Ed McCain, Mayor Pro Tem 

Aaron Smith  

Toni Clay  

Robert Gross 

 

Elizabeth Borstad, City Manager  

 Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary 

 

Staff Present: Buddy Hill, Police Chief, Mandie Quigg, Finance Director, Tim Perry, Public 

Works Director, Jennifer Robertson, Director of Human Resources, Derek Whiteley, Director of 

Information Technology, Audrey Sloan, Director of Development Services, Randy Williams, 

Utilities Director, Katie Birk, Tourism and Cultural Resources Coordinator, Joanie Ahlers, 

Economic Development Director. 

 

Others present: Sytonia Freeman, Michelle Zenor, Rich Flowers, Marisa Gunstanson,  

Deborah Deas, Gary Penn, Mark Carroll, Clint Davis, Tom and Lynn Leathem,  

Keith Knighton, Pastor Kyle Henderson, Carol Morton, Chris Tinsley, Rich Flowers,  

Kenieth LaForest, Steven Freeman II, Bill McMahon, Pamela Smith, Mary Hendrix,  

Lanette Ainsworth, Gretchen Spinner and Michael Hannigan. 

 

constituting a quorum at which time the following proceedings were enacted, to-wit: 

 

INVOCATION  

 

The Invocation was given by Councilmember Smith.   

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

 

DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 

No action was taken. 

 

MAYOR, CITY COUNCIL AND/OR CITY MANAGER UPDATES 

INVOLVING COMMUNITY EVENTS AND ISSUES OF PUBLIC SAFETY  

 

There were no updates involving Community Events and issues of Public Safety. 

 

 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 

 

Pastor Kyle Henderson presented information regarding a proposal for upgrading of the 18-Hole 

Disc Golf Course at Cain Park. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Council Regular Session 

March 9, 2020 

Page 2 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

a) CONSIDER APPROVING MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 10, 2020 

REGULAR SESSION 

b) CONSIDER APPROVING MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 24, 2020 

REGULAR SESSION 

c) CONSIDER A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE CITY OF ATHENS AND ATXFM, INC. (DBA: ATHENS 

TEXAS FARMERS MARKET) FOR THE TEMPORARY USE OF THE 

CITY PARKING LOT TO CONDUCT A FARMER’S MARKET 

BEGINNING MAY 2, 2020, AS REQUESTED BY D.J. WARREN 

d) JANUARY 2020 MONTHLY REVENUE AND EXPENSE REPORT  

 

A motion was made by Councilmember Gross, seconded by Councilmember Smith to approve 

the Consent Agenda. The motion carried unanimously.  

 

HEAR UPDATE ON CAIN CENTER PROJECT  

 

Mayor Montgomery stated a meeting was held with the Cain Center Steering Committee and the 

project is progressing and ready to move forward. He stated direction was given to the 

Construction Manager for making some cuts for value engineering. 

 

Mayor Montgomery stated the City Council would move to agenda item 14)  Discuss, consider 

and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a Resolution authorizing the 

assignment/transfer of Animal Shelter Services to the Humane Society of Cedar Creek Lake 

 

DISCUSS, CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION, AS NECESSARY, CONCERNING THE 

APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ASSIGNMENT/TRANSFER OF 

ANIMAL SHELTER SERVICES TO THE HUMANE SOCIETY OF CEDAR CREEK LAKE 

 

Elizabeth Borstad, City Manager, explained the City’s Interlocal Agreement with the County 

allows for the transfer of services upon the City’s approval. She stated on March 3, 2020 the 

County entered into an agreement with the Humane Society of Cedar Creek Lake for animal 

shelter services. She stated the Resolution is the City’s consent to transfer services. 

 

Clint Davis, Henderson County Attorney, explained County’s Interlocal Agreement requires the 

City to approve any assignment of the County’s duties or obligations under the agreement.  

Discussion occurred. 

Mary Hendrix spoke in opposition of the approval of a Resolution authorizing the 

assignment/transfer of Animal Shelter Services to the Humane Society of Cedar Creek Lake. 

A motion was made by Councilmember McCain, seconded by Councilwoman Clay to approve a 

Resolution authorizing the assignment/transfer of Animal Shelter Services to the Humane 

Society of Cedar Creek Lake. The motion carried unanimously.  

 

HEAR UPDATE ON CLEANUP OF FIRST STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY 

BETWEEN JONATHAN STREET AND WILLIAMS STREET  

 

Tim Perry, Public Works Director, provided an update on the cleanup of First Street Right-Of-

Way between Jonathan Street and Williams Street. He stated cleanup of the debris is progressing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING CONCERNING A REQUEST FROM TRITON ATHENS I, 

LLC FOR APPROVAL OF A SITE PLAN AMENDMENT FOR LOTS 1-5, 

BLOCK 1 OF THE TRITON ATHENS SUBDIVISION, R.A. CLARK SURVEY 

A-171, ALSO KNOWN AS 1006, 1010 AND 1012 EAST TYLER STREET  

 



City Council Regular Session 

March 9, 2020 

Page 3 

Audrey Sloan, Director of Development Services, presented the proposed site plan for Triton 

Athens I, LLC. She explained the proposal is to amend the drive approach locations, the screening 

wall and the signage requirements for the Triton project. 

She explained the original site plan was approved in October of 2017. A site plan amendment was 

approved in September of 2018. A site plan amendment concerning the sign package for Lot 1 

(Panda Express) was approved last month.  

Discussion occurred regarding the elevation points, concern regarding the fencing, and parking 

violations. 

Mayor Montgomery opened the Public Hearing. 

Alex Flores expressed concern regarding privacy in his back yard. 

Bill McMahon, Triton Athens I, LLC Developer, addressed the City Council. He stated there would 

be a full-time Superintendent on site to address any violations. 

Additional discussion occurred. 

The Public Hearing was closed. 

DISCUSS FIRST READING OF AN ORDINANCE CONCERNING A 

REQUEST FROM TRITON ATHENS I, LLC FOR APPROVAL OF A SITE 

PLAN AMENDMENT FOR LOTS 1-5, BLOCK 1 OF THE TRITON ATHENS 

SUBDIVISION, R.A. CLARK SURVEY A-171, ALSO KNOWN AS 1006, 1010 

AND 1012 EAST TYLER STREET 

Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary, read the caption of the Ordinance aloud. 

Councilmember Smith asked if the 516 FT elevation is all the way across the property: with the 

Mayor responding that it is. 

PUBLIC HEARING CONCERNING A REQUEST FROM TRITON ATHENS I, 

LLC FOR APPROVAL OF THE AMENDED FINAL PLAT FOR LOTS 1-5, 

BLOCK 1 OF THE TRITON ATHENS SUBDIVISION, R.A. CLARK SURVEY 

A-171, ALSO KNOWN AS 1006, 1010 AND 1012 EAST TYLER STREET

Ms. Sloan presented the item and explained the proposal is to amend the locations of the access 

and utility easements for the Triton property, so they align with the new drive approach locations 

as approved by TxDOT. Ms. Sloan stated the plat is compliant with the City’s subdivision and 

zoning ordinances 

Mayor Montgomery opened the Public Hearing, there were no comments. 

The Public Hearing was closed.  

DISCUSS, CONSIDER AND TAKE ACTION, AS NECESSARY, 

CONCERNING THE APPROVAL OF THE AMENDED FINAL PLAT FOR 

LOTS 1-5, BLOCK 1 OF THE TRITON ATHENS SUBDIVISION, R.A. CLARK 

SURVEY A-171, ALSO KNOWN AS 1006, 1010 AND 1012 EAST TYLER 

STREET  

A motion was made by Councilmember Gross, seconded by Councilmember Smith to approve the 

amended final plat for Lots 1-5, Block 1 of the Triton Athens Subdivision, R.A. Clark Survey A 

171, also known as 1006, 1010 and 1012 East Tyler Street. The motion carried unanimously. 



City Council Regular 
Session March 9, 2020 

Page 4 

CONSIDER FINAL READING OF AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A 

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL PAY FOR FIRE FIGHTERS AND POLICE OFFICERS 

Ms. Hambrick read the caption of the Ordinance aloud. 

A motion was made by Councilmember McCain, seconded by Councilmember Gross to approve 

final reading of an Ordinance establishing a shift differential pay for Fire Fighters and Police 

Officers. 

After roll call vote, the motion passed with the following record vote:  

Monte Montgomery, Mayor   Aye 

Ed McCain, Mayor Pro Tem   Aye  

Aaron Smith, Councilmember  Aye  

Toni Clay, Councilmember   Aye  

Robert Gross, Councilmember Aye  

Voted in favor of the motion 5 

Voted against the motion 0   

 Motion carried 5-0  

EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, 

SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY; 

CLOSED MEETING) TO DELIBERATE THE PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, 

LEASE, OR VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY: 

a) 405 LINDSEY LANE

b) 415 EAST CORSICANA STREET

The City Council convened in Executive Session at 6:25 p.m. 

The City Council returned to Regular Session at 6:42 p.m.  

CONSIDER ACTION RESULTING FROM DELIBERATIONS IN EXECUTIVE 

SESSION PURSUANT TO THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 

551.072 (DELIBERATION REGARDING REAL PROPERTY; CLOSED 

MEETING) TO DELIBERATE THE PURCHASE, EXCHANGE, LEASE, OR 

VALUE OF REAL PROPERTY 

a) 405 LINDSEY LANE

No action was taken. 

b) 415 E. CORSICANA STREET

No action was taken. 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL’S REQUEST FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

Ms. Hambrick read aloud the following future agenda items: 

• Councilmember McCain requested an update on a Supervisory Control and Data

Acquisition (SCADA) System

• Mayor Montgomery requested a joint meeting with Athens Municipal Water

Authority



City Council Regular Session
March 9, 2020 

Page 5 

• Update from SPI, regarding Back up power for the Critical Services, and Royal

Mountain Standpipe will appear on a future agenda

• Form a sub-group to look at areas with high accident counts and preventive

measures and include a representative from TxDOT

Ms. Borstad stated a work session to discuss Civil Service requirements for Police Recruits will 

appear on a future agenda. 

ADJOURN 

The meeting adjourned at 6:50 p.m. 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS THE 23rd DAY OF MARCH, 2020. 

___________________________ 

Monte Montgomery, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary     



 
Agenda Memorandum 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:    March 23, 2020 

 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration  

CONTACT:    Elizabeth Borstad, City Manager  

SUBJECT:    Consider a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a grant agreement with 
The Ginger Murchison Foundation and accept the contribution of $2.5 million 
dollars for the Cain Center Construction 

 

SUMMARY:    The Resolution will authorize the Mayor to enter into a grant agreement with The 
Ginger Murchison Foundation and accept the contribution of $2.5 million dollars 
for the Cain Center Construction. 

 

BACKGROUND:   The City Council for the City of Athens has approved to undertake the renovation, 
construction, operation and continued maintenance of the Cain Center, which was 
ratified by the citizens of Athens, Texas at a general election held on May 2, 2019; 
The Murchison Foundation through its board of director’s, fully supports the Cain 
Center Project and desires to make financial contribution to the Cain Center 
Project in the amount of $2.5 million dollars. 

   

ISSUE:  n/a 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT:  n/a 

RECOMMENDATION:  Consider a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a grant agreement with 
The Ginger Murchison Foundation and accept the contribution of $2.5 million 
dollars for the Cain Center Construction. 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO.   2020-R- 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY ATHENS, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE 
GINGER MURCHISON FOUNDATION AND ACCEPT THE CONTRIBUTION OF $2.5 
MILLION DOLLARS FOR THE CAIN CENTER CONSTRUCTION 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Athens has approved to undertake the renovation, 
construction, operation and continued maintenance of the Cain Center, which was ratified by  
the citizens of Athens, Texas at a general election held on May 9, 2019; and;   
 
WHEREAS the Murchison Foundation, by and through its board of directors, fully 
supports the Cain Center project and desires to make a financial contribution to the Cain 
Center project in the amount of $2.5 million dollars and; 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ATHENS, TEXAS, that the Mayor is authorized to enter into a grant agreement with 
The Ginger Murchison Foundation and accept the contribution of $2.5 million dollars for the Cain 
Center Construction. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED by majority vote of the City Council of the City of Athens, Texas 
this 23rd day of March, 2020. 

 
________________________ 
Monte Montgomery, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

__________________________ 
Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary 



City of Athens, Texas 
Agenda Memorandum 

AGENDA DATE:  March 23, 2020 

DEPARTMENT: Fire 546 

CONTACT:  Russell Marshall, Fire Chief  

SUBJECT:  Henderson County Contract and Agreement for Fire Protection 

SUMMARY: The county desires to provide rural fire protection for the citizens of Henderson County that are 
not protected within a municipality. Athens Fire / Rescue will maintain operational firefighting apparatus and 
equipment to meet the needs of incidents to which they respond. Athens Fire / Rescue is a duly incorporated fire 
department and duly certified and recognized by the State of Texas as a fire department and in good standing 
with the State of Texas and the United States of America. The parties desire that an agreement be made to 
provide payment for rural fire protection in the County of Henderson, State of Texas. 

BACKGROUND:  Annual Contract Renewal 

ISSUE: NA

ALTERNATIVES:  NA

FISCAL IMPACT: Henderson County shall pay department $11,068.00 for the year 2020 in consideration 
for the department’s agreement and commitment to provide rural fire protection, rescue, and other emergency 
response in the said department’s response area and maintain active membership by attendance at the 
Henderson County Fire Chief’s Association meetings. 

RECOMMENDATION: Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a 
resolution authorizing the city manager to enter a contract and agreement with 
Henderson County for fire protection beginning January 01, 2020 and ending 
December 31, 2020.  



RESOLUTION NO. 2020 R- 
 

 
 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ATHENS, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT AND 
AGREEMENT WITH HENDERSON COUNTY FOR RURAL FIRE PROTECTION  

WHEREAS, County of Henderson desires to provide rural fire protection for the citizens of 
Henderson County that are not protected within a municipality. 

WHEREAS, City of Athens will maintain operational firefighting apparatus and equipment to 
meet the needs of incidents to which they respond.  I.e., brush truck for response to grass/wild-
land fires; pumper, tender/tanker, engine for response to structural fires; etc. 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire that an agreement be made to provide payment for rural 
fire protection in the County of Henderson, State of Texas; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ATHENS, TEXAS, that the Athens City Council authorizes the city Manager to enter 
into an agreement with Henderson County for Rural Fire Protection. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 23rd  day of March, 2020. 

______________________________ 

Monte Montgomery, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 
Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary 







 
Agenda Memorandum 

 

 

AGENDA DATE:  3/23/2020     

 

DEPARTMENT:  Finance 

CONTACT:    Mandie Quigg 

SUBJECT:   Monthly Revenue and Expense Report for the month of February 2020 

SUMMARY:   Revenue and Expense report for major funds 

BACKGROUND:   This report includes full-year budgeted amounts; current month and YTD actual 
amounts.  

ISSUE:  Providing financial transparency. 

ALTERNATIVES:  N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Revenues and expenditures are reflected for the month ending February 29, 2020  
  as well as year-to-date. This report is unaudited and subject to adjustments. 

RECOMMENDATION:  It is recommended that City Council accept the Monthly Revenue and Expense 
report for the month of February 2020.   

 

 

1 of 23



 

 

 

MONTHLY REVENUE  

AND EXPENSE REPORT 
 

FISCAL YEAR 2020 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 

FEBRUARY 29, 2020 

 

 

Prepared by 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

March 14, 2020 

 

 

 

 
2 of 23



 
 

 
 

Finance Department 

Budget Report – 41.67% of FY 2020 Completed 
 

 

General Fund Revenue and Expense Summary: General Fund revenues to date total $6,633,516.21 or 58.54% of budget. 

General Fund expenditures to date total $4,362,069.30 plus encumbrances of $386,728.54 for a total of $4,748,797.84 or 41.45% of 

budget.  

The City’s current tax levy reports 92.53% collection of budgeted amounts. Total maintenance and operations property tax revenue to 

date is $4,025,543.69. The bulk of Ad Valorem revenues are received between the months of December through February. 

The City’s total sales tax budget (2 cents) is estimated at a net $4,301,250. The City has received a total of $2,731,127.68 to date with 

the portion retained by the City totaling $2,048,345.76. The Athens Economic Development Corporation receives ½ cent of collections 

via a transfer from the General Fund each month. The total YTD transfers to AEDC is $682,781.92. 

Important Expenditure Notations:  

 PO Encumbrances from FY 2019 carried into FY 2020 via Budget Amendment approved December 9, 2019: 

o 10-532-6520; $147,256 for Carroll Street Improvements incomplete at 9/30/19 

o 10-553-6204; $57,297 for Portable Radios for Patrol Officers incomplete at 9/30/19 

 Council approved the prepayment of the Wildland Fire Engine in the amount of $469,188. This expenditure is classified as a 

prepaid and is not reflected as a General Fund expenditure, although cash was decreased to complete the purchase. FAST Grant 

funds will be received upon delivery of the Engine in March 2021.  

 

Airport Fund: Revenues YTD total $36,838.03 or 70.30% of budget. This sharp increase is due to the receipt of RAMP Grant 

reimbursement in the amount of $12,350.22. Expenditures YTD equal $39,436.19 or 76.06% of budget. The higher than anticipated 

increase in YTD budgeted expense is due to the replacement of the Airport’s beacon and additional required maintenance.  

 

3 of 23



Finance Department 

Budget Report – 41.67% of FY 2020 Completed 

Hotel/Motel Occupancy Fund: Revenues YTD total $140,082.93 or 46.46% of budget. Expenditures YTD equal $112,059.52 plus 

encumbrances of $56,996 for a total of $169,055.52 or 55.21% of budget. Purchase Orders for Aid to Other Organizations are reflected 

in the encumbrance column totaling $40,000, plus advertising encumbrances of $11,000 and $5,000 for Façade Improvements. 

Important Expenditure Notations:  

 PO Encumbrances from FY 2019 carried into FY 2020 via Budget Amendment approved December 9, 2019:

o 12-572-6380; $5,000 for Downtown Façade Improvements incomplete at 9/30/19

Debt Service Revenue and Expense Summary: Revenues YTD total $785,010.37 or 90.44% of budgeted revenues. 

Expenditures YTD total $258,944.50 or 29.83% of budget.  

Capital Projects Fund: Interest earned YTD is $26,597.40 or 21.28% of budgeted revenues. Expenditures YTD are $171,514.30 

plus encumbrances of $53,750 for a total of $225,264.30 or 6.07% of budgeted amounts. Expenditures this period include $132,983.62 

for the Cain Center Project to PGAL and $1,293.10 for improvements at Central Fire Station. 

Water and Sewer Fund: The City’s Utility revenue YTD is $2,367,537.19 or 39.88% of budgeted revenues. Water related income 

totals $1,183,750.45, sewer related income totals $1,098,173.88 and other revenues total $85,612.86. Expenditures YTD are 

$1,758,905.01 plus encumbrances of $565,823.44 for a total of $2,324,728.45 or 38.30% of budgeted expenditures.  

Important Expenditure Notations:  

 Supplemental Appropriation Budget Amendment approved January 27, 2020:

o 40-565-6506; $134,608 for the purchase of a Crane Truck

4 of 23



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   1
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
10 -GENERAL FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
REVENUES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

AD VALOREM /OTHER TAXES
 10-4011     CURRENT TAXES                4,309,480      317,196.03    3,987,410.09            0.00      322,069.91    92.53
 10-4012     DELINQUENT TAXES                50,000        1,778.45       23,216.02            0.00       26,783.98    46.43
 10-4015     PENALTY/INTEREST: TAXES         55,000        4,927.75       14,917.58            0.00       40,082.42    27.12
 10-4021     SALES TAX COLLECTIONS        5,735,000      709,652.51    2,731,127.68            0.00    3,003,872.32    47.62
 10-4021.1   SALES TAX CONTRA-AEDC     (  1,433,750)(    177,413.13)(    682,781.93)           0.00 (    750,968.07)   47.62
 10-4022     STATE MIXED BEVERAGE TAX        32,000            0.00       20,657.42            0.00       11,342.58    64.55
   TOTAL AD VALOREM /OTHER TAXES          8,747,730      856,141.61    6,094,546.86            0.00    2,653,183.14    69.67

FRANCHISE
 10-4100     FRANCHISE FEES                 790,000        9,168.75       99,499.53            0.00      690,500.47    12.59
 10-4121     FRANCHISE: SOLID WASTE         100,000        9,211.74       45,797.84            0.00       54,202.16    45.80
   TOTAL FRANCHISE                          890,000       18,380.49      145,297.37            0.00      744,702.63    16.33

COURT/PUBLIC SAFETY
 10-4201     INCOME FROM FINES/OTHER FEE    150,000       14,192.38       47,561.04            0.00      102,438.96    31.71
 10-4201.2   FIVE/TEN PERCENT COURT FEES      6,000          476.16        1,784.26            0.00        4,215.74    29.74
 10-4201.3   TIME PAYMENT FEES                5,000          217.04          484.10            0.00        4,515.90     9.68
 10-4201.4   FAILURE TO APPEAR FEES           1,500          145.46          324.42            0.00        1,175.58    21.63
 10-4201.5   CHILD SAFETY RESTRAINT FEES        100            0.00            0.00            0.00          100.00     0.00
 10-4201.6   COURT TECH. FEE (RESTRICTED      4,000          344.45        1,318.03            0.00        2,681.97    32.95
 10-4201.65  BUILDING SECURITY (RESTRICT      2,500          248.26          899.43            0.00        1,600.57    35.98
 10-4201.66  LOCAL TRUANCY (RESTRICTED)           0          115.57          191.84            0.00 (        191.84)    0.00
 10-4201.67  LOCAL JURY FUND (RESTRICTED          0            2.30            3.82            0.00 (          3.82)    0.00
 10-4201.8   JUDICIAL FEE RETAINED            1,000           37.74          175.59            0.00          824.41    17.56
 10-4201.9   JUROR REIMBURSEMENT FEES           500           25.17          117.08            0.00          382.92    23.42
   TOTAL COURT/PUBLIC SAFETY                170,600       15,804.53       52,859.61            0.00      117,740.39    30.98

LICENSES/PERMITS
 10-4345     RE-ZONING FEES                   4,000            0.00          250.00            0.00        3,750.00     6.25
 10-4360     CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION              0          550.00        3,125.00            0.00 (      3,125.00)    0.00
 10-4361     PLATTING FEES                    6,500          400.00        2,790.00            0.00        3,710.00    42.92
 10-4362     PERMITS : MISCELLANEOUS            500            0.00          315.00            0.00          185.00    63.00
 10-4365     PERMITS : BUILDING              75,000        3,352.00       11,896.00            0.00       63,104.00    15.86
 10-4366     PERMITS : ELECTRICAL             8,000          320.00        1,545.00            0.00        6,455.00    19.31
 10-4367     PERMITS : PLUMBING               7,500          280.00        1,280.00            0.00        6,220.00    17.07
 10-4368     PERMITS : MECHANICAL             2,000           90.00          370.00            0.00        1,630.00    18.50
 10-4369     PERMITS : MOBILE HOMES             300            0.00          400.00            0.00 (        100.00)  133.33
 10-4371     PERMITS-CERT OF OCCUPANCY        4,000          600.00        2,400.00            0.00        1,600.00    60.00
 10-4372     PERMITS : TREE REMOVAL             100            0.00           40.00            0.00           60.00    40.00
 10-4373     PERMIT-KITCHEN SUPPRESSION         200            0.00            0.00            0.00          200.00     0.00
 10-4374     PERMIT-FIRE SPRINKLER            1,000            0.00          303.00            0.00          697.00    30.30
 10-4375     PERMITS : BURN                   1,500           50.00        1,220.00            0.00          280.00    81.33
 10-4376     PERMITS: ALCOHOL                   750          360.00          600.00            0.00          150.00    80.00
 10-4379     CURB CUTTING                       100            0.00            0.00            0.00          100.00     0.00
 10-4380     BLDG LINE VARIANCE                 500            0.00            0.00            0.00          500.00     0.00
 10-4399     FARMERS MKT. RV SPACE FEE        1,000            0.00           24.00            0.00          976.00     2.40
   TOTAL LICENSES/PERMITS                   112,950        6,002.00       26,558.00            0.00       86,392.00    23.51

5 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   2
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
10 -GENERAL FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
REVENUES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE                ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL
 10-4511     OPERATING TRANSFERS - FUND       7,000            0.00            0.00            0.00        7,000.00     0.00
 10-4512     OPERATING TRANSFERS - FUND      50,252            0.00       12,563.00            0.00       37,689.00    25.00
 10-4516     OPERATING TRANSFER- FUND 16      5,000            0.00            0.00            0.00        5,000.00     0.00
 10-4540     OPERATING TRF - FUND 40        831,205            0.00      207,801.25            0.00      623,403.75    25.00
 10-4595     OPERATING TRF - FUND 95        170,883            0.00            0.00            0.00      170,883.38     0.00
   TOTAL INTRAGOVERNMENTAL                1,064,340            0.00      220,364.25            0.00      843,976.13    20.70

INTERGOVERNMENTAL
 10-4633     CNTY FIRE/FIRST RESPONDER A     14,500            0.00            0.00            0.00       14,500.00     0.00
 10-4635     AEDC ADMINISTRATIVE FEES        10,800            0.00        2,700.00            0.00        8,100.00    25.00
   TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL                   25,300            0.00        2,700.00            0.00       22,600.00    10.67

REIMBURSING REVENUE
 10-4710     WORKERS COMPENSATION REIM.       5,000            0.00            0.00            0.00        5,000.00     0.00
 10-4711     OTHER INSURANCE REIMBURSEME      2,500            0.00            0.00            0.00        2,500.00     0.00
 10-4740     HOUSE DEMO/LOT CLEANUP           2,500        1,376.00        5,293.92            0.00 (      2,793.92)  211.76
 10-4799     OTHER REIMBURSING REVENUE      195,000            0.00       55,741.29            0.00      139,258.71    28.59
   TOTAL REIMBURSING REVENUE                205,000        1,376.00       61,035.21            0.00      143,964.79    29.77

OTHER NON-OPERATING
 10-4801     INTEREST EARNED                 70,000        5,489.52       27,746.20            0.00       42,253.80    39.64
 10-4810     LEASE REVENUE:PARKING LOT          500            0.00            0.00            0.00          500.00     0.00
 10-4830     DONATIONS                       10,000            0.00            0.00            0.00       10,000.00     0.00
 10-4840     SALES OF CAPITAL ASSETS         25,000            0.00            0.00            0.00       25,000.00     0.00
 10-4899     MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE           10,000 (         83.81)       2,408.71            0.00        7,591.29    24.09
   TOTAL OTHER NON-OPERATING                115,500        5,405.71       30,154.91            0.00       85,345.09    26.11

OTHER NON-OPERATING                    ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                            11,331,420      903,110.34    6,633,516.21            0.00    4,697,904.17    58.54
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

6 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   3
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
10 -GENERAL FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

10-ADMINISTRATION
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     192,276       22,151.54       81,079.83            0.00      111,196.19    42.17
  62-SUPPLIES                                 3,340            7.92           78.76            0.00        3,261.24     2.36
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    22,350          545.67        5,815.31            0.00       16,534.69    26.02
      TOTAL 10-ADMINISTRATION               217,966       22,705.13       86,973.90            0.00      130,992.12    39.90

11-LEGAL
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    25,000          682.50        6,515.13            0.00       18,484.87    26.06
      TOTAL 11-LEGAL                         25,000          682.50        6,515.13            0.00       18,484.87    26.06

12-HUMAN RESOURCES
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     108,259       11,848.76       44,025.24            0.00       64,233.28    40.67
  62-SUPPLIES                                14,400          526.64        6,865.02            0.00        7,534.98    47.67
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    16,400          341.62        4,924.97            0.00       11,475.03    30.03
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                          23,500        2,307.50        2,307.50            0.00       21,192.50     9.82
      TOTAL 12-HUMAN RESOURCES              162,559       15,024.52       58,122.73            0.00      104,435.79    35.75

13-TECHNOLOGY
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     105,557       11,725.50       42,623.86            0.00       62,932.64    40.38
  62-SUPPLIES                                18,360          863.55        3,939.54            0.00       14,420.46    21.46
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    45,300        1,223.46       35,492.97            0.00        9,807.03    78.35
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                           6,000            0.00            0.00            0.00        6,000.00     0.00
      TOTAL 13-TECHNOLOGY                   175,217       13,812.51       82,056.37            0.00       93,160.13    46.83

14-FINANCE & TECHNOLOGY
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     263,019       29,263.97      107,176.98            0.00      155,842.10    40.75
  62-SUPPLIES                                 5,150          272.89        2,481.97            0.00        2,668.03    48.19
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    52,400          241.37       41,608.10            0.00       10,791.90    79.40
      TOTAL 14-FINANCE & TECHNOLOGY         320,569       29,778.23      151,267.05            0.00      169,302.03    47.19

15-MAYOR/COUNCIL
  62-SUPPLIES                                 1,350            0.00          894.40            0.00          455.60    66.25
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    36,150        3,166.95        9,713.41        4,000.00       22,436.59    37.93
      TOTAL 15-MAYOR/COUNCIL                 37,500        3,166.95       10,607.81        4,000.00       22,892.19    38.95

16-CITY SECRETARY
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     125,706       12,878.04       47,953.25            0.00       77,752.81    38.15
  62-SUPPLIES                                 5,150           77.47        1,828.60            0.00        3,321.40    35.51
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    19,250        1,218.90        5,904.82            0.00       13,345.18    30.67
      TOTAL 16-CITY SECRETARY               150,106       14,174.41       55,686.67            0.00       94,419.39    37.10

17-FACILITIES
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                      27,752        3,096.05       11,520.26            0.00       16,232.08    41.51
  62-SUPPLIES                                11,520          240.40        3,856.80            0.00        7,663.20    33.48
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   190,550       13,783.16       57,902.25       15,785.00      116,862.75    38.67
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                          65,000            0.00        1,197.30            0.00       63,802.70     1.84
      TOTAL 17-FACILITIES                   294,822       17,119.61       74,476.61       15,785.00      204,560.73    30.62

7 of 23

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
1

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
2

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
1) Technology Department - Annual hosting fees paid for FY 2020, in addition to annual City-wide technology training.2) Finance Department - FY 2019 annual audit fees fully expended.

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   4
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
10 -GENERAL FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

18-SANITATION                          ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

20-COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT               ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

22-CODE ENFORCEMENT
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     147,181       16,577.60       59,758.10            0.00       87,422.64    40.60
  62-SUPPLIES                                 8,700            0.00        1,595.51            0.00        7,104.49    18.34
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    27,100        1,420.51       13,007.03            0.00       14,092.97    48.00
      TOTAL 22-CODE ENFORCEMENT             182,981       17,998.11       74,360.64            0.00      108,620.10    40.64

24-PLANNING/DEVELOPMENT
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     175,490       19,879.39       73,199.39            0.00      102,291.01    41.71
  62-SUPPLIES                                 2,950          220.70          717.49            0.00        2,232.51    24.32
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   121,100        3,694.66       29,882.88       74,786.67       16,430.45    86.43
      TOTAL 24-PLANNING/DEVELOPMENT         299,540       23,794.75      103,799.76       74,786.67      120,953.97    59.62

32-STREET DEPARTMENT
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     464,775       50,211.28      197,258.85            0.00      267,516.49    42.44
  62-SUPPLIES                               106,820        4,896.13       35,534.07       24,881.28       46,404.65    56.56
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   248,000       19,039.05       71,109.23            0.00      176,890.77    28.67
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                         547,256 (     79,857.61)     162,782.54      252,811.81      131,661.65    75.94
      TOTAL 32-STREET DEPARTMENT          1,366,851 (      5,711.15)     466,684.69      277,693.09      622,473.56    54.46

34-PARKS DEPARTMENT
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     419,305       49,750.37      178,781.60            0.00      240,523.27    42.64
  62-SUPPLIES                                49,320        2,244.60       19,999.84            0.00       29,320.16    40.55
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    98,200        7,630.86       27,664.29            0.00       70,535.71    28.17
      TOTAL 34-PARKS DEPARTMENT             566,825       59,625.83      226,445.73            0.00      340,379.14    39.95

35-CAIN CENTER                         ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

38-FLEET MAINTENANCE
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     181,879       16,102.00       61,244.20            0.00      120,635.11    33.67
  62-SUPPLIES                                15,020          818.28        4,552.53            0.00       10,467.47    30.31
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                     8,150          384.86        6,400.12            0.00        1,749.88    78.53
      TOTAL 38-FLEET MAINTENANCE            205,049       17,305.14       72,196.85            0.00      132,852.46    35.21

45-CIVIL SERVICE
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                      53,297        5,842.69       21,763.39            0.00       31,533.93    40.83
  62-SUPPLIES                                 2,000          320.15        1,796.04            0.00          203.96    89.80
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                     7,000        1,433.95        5,602.35            0.00        1,397.65    80.03
      TOTAL 45-CIVIL SERVICE                 62,297        7,596.79       29,161.78            0.00       33,135.54    46.81

46-FIRE SERVICES
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                   2,396,250      251,085.56    1,043,185.40            0.00    1,353,064.74    43.53
  62-SUPPLIES                               117,170        5,840.80       69,295.51            0.00       47,874.49    59.14
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    94,347        8,053.60       30,637.55            0.00       63,709.45    32.47
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                           2,053            0.00            0.00        2,053.00            0.00   100.00
      TOTAL 46-FIRE SERVICES              2,609,820      264,979.96    1,143,118.46        2,053.00    1,464,648.68    43.88

8 of 23

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
5

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
3

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
4

MQuigg
Rectangle

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
3) Planning & Development - Encumbrance for Norris Design (Master Plan) captured in Development Services budget.4) Street Department - Encumbrances for annual street repair and capital improvements posted.5) Civil Service - Increased number of pre-employment testing causing higher than anticipated expenditure YTD.



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   5
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
10 -GENERAL FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

47-EMERGENCY OPERATIONS
  62-SUPPLIES                                12,750        1,251.48        1,381.98            0.00       11,368.02    10.84
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                     5,600           49.34          334.33            0.00        5,265.67     5.97
      TOTAL 47-EMERGENCY OPERATIONS          18,350        1,300.82        1,716.31            0.00       16,633.69     9.35

49-ANIMAL CONTROL
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                      53,431        6,039.86       22,548.65            0.00       30,882.08    42.20
  62-SUPPLIES                                 5,100           36.88          959.86            0.00        4,140.14    18.82
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    67,275           22.77       16,403.30            0.00       50,871.70    24.38
      TOTAL 49-ANIMAL CONTROL               125,806        6,099.51       39,911.81            0.00       85,893.92    31.72

50-MUNICIPAL COURT
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                      93,023        8,788.15       32,370.68            0.00       60,651.91    34.80
  62-SUPPLIES                                 5,300          213.61        1,263.29            0.00        4,036.71    23.84
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    40,800        2,898.91       17,191.37            0.00       23,608.63    42.14
      TOTAL 50-MUNICIPAL COURT              139,123       11,900.67       50,825.34            0.00       88,297.25    36.53

51-POLICE ADMINISTRATION
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     280,213       31,210.06      117,364.76            0.00      162,848.46    41.88
  62-SUPPLIES                                 6,800           16.98        1,409.08            0.00        5,390.92    20.72
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                     8,350          971.22        3,161.92            0.00        5,188.08    37.87
      TOTAL 51-POLICE ADMINISTRATION        295,363       32,198.26      121,935.76            0.00      173,427.46    41.28

52-POLICE INVESTIGATION
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     520,449       54,248.60      198,067.44            0.00      322,381.43    38.06
  62-SUPPLIES                                16,050          193.93        3,010.27            0.00       13,039.73    18.76
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    15,150 (        254.26)       4,184.19            0.00       10,965.81    27.62
      TOTAL 52-POLICE INVESTIGATION         551,649       54,188.27      205,261.90            0.00      346,386.97    37.21

53-POLICE PATROL
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                   1,924,966      183,823.42      703,847.94            0.00    1,221,118.18    36.56
  62-SUPPLIES                               136,247       60,036.67       77,331.60            0.00       58,915.40    56.76
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    30,350 (      9,531.22)(      7,155.14)      12,410.78       25,094.36    17.32
      TOTAL 53-POLICE PATROL              2,091,563      234,328.87      774,024.40       12,410.78    1,305,127.94    37.60

54-POLICE SUPPORT SERV
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     587,483       41,560.09      207,685.49            0.00      379,797.36    35.35
  62-SUPPLIES                                22,450          780.70        5,993.89            0.00       16,456.11    26.70
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    81,500        2,256.43       32,817.20            0.00       48,682.80    40.27
      TOTAL 54-POLICE SUPPORT SERV          691,433       44,597.22      246,496.58            0.00      444,936.27    35.65

55-NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   301,630       15,267.00      177,028.42            0.00      124,601.58    58.69
  66-OPERATING TRANSFERS                    392,868            0.00       78,000.00            0.00      314,868.04    19.85
      TOTAL 55-NON-DEPARTMENTAL             694,498       15,267.00      255,028.42            0.00      439,469.62    36.72

9 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   6
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
10 -GENERAL FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

95-AEDC PAYROLL
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     170,652       14,467.80       25,394.60            0.00      145,257.66    14.88
      TOTAL 95-AEDC PAYROLL                 170,652       14,467.80       25,394.60            0.00      145,257.66    14.88
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENSES                           11,455,539      916,401.71    4,362,069.30      386,728.54    6,706,741.48    41.45
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENSES          (    124,119)(     13,291.37)   2,271,446.91 (    386,728.54)(  2,008,837.31)1,518.48-
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

10 of 23

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
6

MQuigg
Rectangle

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
6) AEDC Payroll - Personnel expenditures reimbursement request through March 2020 to be taken to AEDC Board in April.



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   1
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
11 -AIRPORT FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
REVENUES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

OPERATING REVENUE
 11-4348.2   LAND/BUILDING LEASE              6,000            0.00        3,348.19            0.00        2,651.81    55.80
 11-4348.25  HANGER RENT                     40,000        3,102.00       20,299.68            0.00       19,700.32    50.75
 11-4348.3   INSTRUCTION AND PLANE RENTA        250           18.00           90.00            0.00          160.00    36.00
 11-4348.4   AIRCRAFT CHARTER AND TAXI           50            0.00            0.00            0.00           50.00     0.00
 11-4348.5   AIRPORT SALES                      150            1.41          114.50            0.00           35.50    76.33
 11-4348.6   AIRCRAFT MAINTENANCE               300           11.50           94.50            0.00          205.50    31.50
 11-4348.7   FUEL SALES                       1,500          106.02          515.59            0.00          984.41    34.37
   TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE                   48,250        3,238.93       24,462.46            0.00       23,787.54    50.70

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL RECEIPTS
 11-4502     RAMP GRANT                       4,000       12,350.22       12,350.22            0.00 (      8,350.22)  308.76
   TOTAL INTRAGOVERNMENTAL RECEIPTS           4,000       12,350.22       12,350.22            0.00 (      8,350.22)  308.76

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIPTS             ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

REIMBURSING REVENUE                    ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

OTHER NON-OPERATING
 11-4801     INTEREST EARNED                    150            4.94           25.35            0.00          124.65    16.90
   TOTAL OTHER NON-OPERATING                    150            4.94           25.35            0.00          124.65    16.90

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                                52,400       15,594.09       36,838.03            0.00       15,561.97    70.30
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

11 of 23

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
7

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
7) RAMP Grant - received reimbursement for 50% of expenditure of Airport Beacon and annual maintenance to date.

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   2
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
11 -AIRPORT FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

36-AIRPORT
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                      25,274        2,884.82       10,471.55            0.00       14,802.24    41.43
  62-SUPPLIES                                 4,225           74.57        1,161.79            0.00        3,063.21    27.50
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    15,350          365.88       12,313.85            0.00        3,036.15    80.22
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                               0            0.00       15,489.00            0.00 (     15,489.00)    0.00
  66-OPERATING TRANSFERS                      7,000            0.00            0.00            0.00        7,000.00     0.00
      TOTAL 36-AIRPORT                       51,849        3,325.27       39,436.19            0.00       12,412.60    76.06
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENSES                               51,849        3,325.27       39,436.19            0.00       12,412.60    76.06
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENSES                   551       12,268.82 (      2,598.16)           0.00        3,149.37   471.36-
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

12 of 23

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
8

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
8) Airport - Beacon repair and additional expenditure for repairing the AWOS system.

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   1
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
12 -HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
REVENUES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

AD VALOREM/OTHER TAXES
 12-4023     HOTEL/MOTEL OCC'Y TAX          300,000       26,976.23      139,313.32            0.00      160,686.68    46.44
 12-4801     INTEREST INCOME                  1,500          117.50          604.05            0.00          895.95    40.27
 12-4899     MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE                0          159.93          165.56            0.00 (        165.56)    0.00
   TOTAL AD VALOREM/OTHER TAXES             301,500       27,253.66      140,082.93            0.00      161,417.07    46.46
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                               301,500       27,253.66      140,082.93            0.00      161,417.07    46.46
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

13 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   2
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
12 -HOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

72-TOURISM
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                      74,393        8,426.94       30,113.08            0.00       44,279.82    40.48
  62-SUPPLIES                                 6,350          136.51          564.34            0.00        5,785.66     8.89
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   175,191        4,279.46       68,819.10       56,996.00       49,375.90    71.82
  66-OPERATING TRANSFERS                     50,252            0.00       12,563.00            0.00       37,689.00    25.00
      TOTAL 72-TOURISM                      306,186       12,842.91      112,059.52       56,996.00      137,130.38    55.21
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENSES                              306,186       12,842.91      112,059.52       56,996.00      137,130.38    55.21
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENSES          (      4,686)      14,410.75       28,023.41 (     56,996.00)      24,286.69   618.29
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

14 of 23

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
9

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
9) Tourism - Encumbrances for approved Aid to Other Organizations funding and Kessler Entertainment are recorded in the Contractual Services category. 

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   1
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
20 -INTEREST AND SINKING FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
REVENUES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

AD VALOREM / OTHER TAXES
 20-4011     CURRENT TAXES                  848,027       61,794.38      776,805.02            0.00       71,221.98    91.60
 20-4012     DELINQUENT                       9,000          363.70        4,901.86            0.00        4,098.14    54.47
 20-4015     PENALTY/INTEREST-TAX            10,000          962.46        3,037.40            0.00        6,962.60    30.37
   TOTAL AD VALOREM / OTHER TAXES           867,027       63,120.54      784,744.28            0.00       82,282.72    90.51

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL RECEIPTS             ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

OTHER NON-OPERATING
 20-4801     INTEREST EARNED                  1,000          143.53          266.09            0.00          733.91    26.61
   TOTAL OTHER NON-OPERATING                  1,000          143.53          266.09            0.00          733.91    26.61

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                               868,027       63,264.07      785,010.37            0.00       83,016.63    90.44
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

15 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   2
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
20 -INTEREST AND SINKING FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

68-DEBT SERVICE
  64-LONG-TERM DEBT                         868,027       11,798.09      258,944.50            0.00      609,082.50    29.83
      TOTAL 68-DEBT SERVICE                 868,027       11,798.09      258,944.50            0.00      609,082.50    29.83
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENSES                              868,027       11,798.09      258,944.50            0.00      609,082.50    29.83
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENSES                     0       51,465.98      526,065.87            0.00 (    526,065.87)    0.00
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

16 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   1
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
30 -CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
REVENUES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL RECEIPTS             ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

OTHER NON-OPERATING
 30-4801     INTEREST EARNED                125,000        4,780.86       26,597.40            0.00       98,402.60    21.28
   TOTAL OTHER NON-OPERATING                125,000        4,780.86       26,597.40            0.00       98,402.60    21.28

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                               125,000        4,780.86       26,597.40            0.00       98,402.60    21.28
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

17 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   2
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
30 -CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

03-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                       3,713,474      134,276.72      171,514.30       53,750.00    3,488,209.70     6.07
      TOTAL 03-CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS       3,713,474      134,276.72      171,514.30       53,750.00    3,488,209.70     6.07

04-FEDERAL GRANTS                      ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENSES                            3,713,474      134,276.72      171,514.30       53,750.00    3,488,209.70     6.07
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENSES          (  3,588,474)(    129,495.86)(    144,916.90)(     53,750.00)(  3,389,807.10)    5.54
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

18 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   1
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
40 -UTILITY FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
REVENUES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

OPERATING REVENUE
 40-4461     WATER INCOME                 2,940,000      207,017.47    1,138,270.04            0.00    1,801,729.96    38.72
 40-4462     WATER TAP FEES                  15,000          760.00        8,762.44            0.00        6,237.56    58.42
 40-4463     WASTEWATER SERVICES          2,680,000      213,775.52    1,065,271.88            0.00    1,614,728.12    39.75
 40-4468     BULK WATER SALES                10,000          863.75        3,632.97            0.00        6,367.03    36.33
 40-4469     INSPECTION FEE                  20,000        1,860.00        8,760.00            0.00       11,240.00    43.80
 40-4469.1   TURN ON FEE/VACATION               500           30.00          150.00            0.00          350.00    30.00
 40-4469.2   RECONNECT FEE                   40,000        5,950.00       23,700.00            0.00       16,300.00    59.25
 40-4471     SYSTEM FEES                      1,000          175.00          475.00            0.00          525.00    47.50
 40-4472     WASTEWATER TAP FEE               7,000            0.00        5,470.00            0.00        1,530.00    78.14
 40-4475     DISPOSAL FEES/PERMITS           50,000        5,994.00       27,432.00            0.00       22,568.00    54.86
 40-4499.1   RETURNED CK FEES                   750          100.00          450.00            0.00          300.00    60.00
   TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE                5,764,250      436,525.74    2,282,374.33            0.00    3,481,875.67    39.60

INTRAGOVERNMENTAL RECEIPTS             ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIPTS             ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

REIMBURSING REVENUE                    ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______

OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUE
 40-4801     INTEREST EARNED                 40,000        4,076.99       19,119.44            0.00       20,880.56    47.80
 40-4802     DISCOUNTS EARNED                   500           40.66          202.39            0.00          297.61    40.48
 40-4803     PENALTY RECEIPTS                90,000        5,509.93       35,317.20            0.00       54,682.80    39.24
 40-4815     NECHES COMPOST FACILITY SAL     17,500       26,996.87       26,996.87            0.00 (      9,496.87)  154.27
 40-4821     AUCTION PROCEEDS                15,000            0.00            0.00            0.00       15,000.00     0.00
 40-4899     MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE           10,000        2,053.42        3,526.96            0.00        6,473.04    35.27
   TOTAL OTHER NON-OPERATING REVENUE        173,000       38,677.87       85,162.86            0.00       87,837.14    49.23

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES                ____________  ______________  ______________  ______________  ______________  _______
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL REVENUE                             5,937,250      475,203.61    2,367,537.19            0.00    3,569,712.81    39.88
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

19 of 23

MQuigg
Rectangle



 
 3-14-2020 03:29 PM                                             CITY OF ATHENS                                    PAGE:   2
                                                     REVENUE & EXPENSE REPORT (UNAUDITED)
                                                           AS OF:  FEBRUARY 29TH, 2020
40 -UTILITY FUND
                                                                                                 % OF YEAR COMPLETED:  41.67
 
                                          CURRENT       CURRENT       YEAR TO DATE         TOTAL          BUDGET      % YTD
EXPENSES                                   BUDGET        PERIOD          ACTUAL         ENCUMBERED       BALANCE      BUDGET
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

61-UTILITY ADMINISTRATION
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     192,795       23,366.12       61,479.07            0.00      131,316.36    31.89
  62-SUPPLIES                                11,770          963.61        3,665.10            0.00        8,104.90    31.14
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   194,000       12,933.60       44,400.67        9,140.80      140,458.53    27.60
      TOTAL 61-UTILITY ADMINISTRATION       398,565       37,263.33      109,544.84        9,140.80      279,879.79    29.78

62-WATER UTILITY
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     447,407       48,215.70      178,513.18            0.00      268,894.20    39.90
  62-SUPPLIES                               146,900        9,855.24       38,198.55       85,553.98       23,147.47    84.24
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   499,400       12,014.70      144,742.82       16,088.00      338,569.18    32.20
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                          32,000       15,612.50       17,164.50          345.00       14,490.50    54.72
      TOTAL 62-WATER UTILITY              1,125,707       85,698.14      378,619.05      101,986.98      645,101.35    42.69

63-DISTRIBUTION&COLLECTIO
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     661,932       69,096.49      247,908.69            0.00      414,023.36    37.45
  62-SUPPLIES                               193,800       15,386.78       99,852.81       37,697.66       56,249.53    70.98
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   169,600       11,185.61       56,542.22          800.00      112,257.78    33.81
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                         334,335 (     20,687.02)      91,809.55       81,659.35      160,866.10    51.88
      TOTAL 63-DISTRIBUTION&COLLECTIO     1,359,667       74,981.86      496,113.27      120,157.01      743,396.77    45.33

65-WASTEWATER UTILITY
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     395,166       36,408.34      137,835.03            0.00      257,331.15    34.88
  62-SUPPLIES                               116,600        7,700.03       43,094.60       15,620.00       57,885.40    50.36
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                   714,600       37,477.12      193,688.27      184,310.75      336,600.98    52.90
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                         166,608            0.00        6,390.00      134,607.90       25,610.10    84.63
      TOTAL 65-WASTEWATER UTILITY         1,392,974       81,585.49      381,007.90      334,538.65      677,427.63    51.37

66-UTILITY BILLING
  61-PERSONNEL SERVICES                     171,756       19,531.36       70,848.05            0.00      100,907.87    41.25
  62-SUPPLIES                                28,600        1,673.87        9,889.11            0.00       18,710.89    34.58
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    18,500          408.07        4,173.66            0.00       14,326.34    22.56
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                          25,000            0.00            0.00            0.00       25,000.00     0.00
      TOTAL 66-UTILITY BILLING              243,856       21,613.30       84,910.82            0.00      158,945.10    34.82

69-NON-DEPARTMENTAL
  63-CONTRACTUAL SERVICES                    81,000        3,110.53       69,582.88            0.00       11,417.12    85.90
  64-LONG-TERM DEBT                         551,210            0.00       17,350.00            0.00      533,860.00     3.15
  65-CAPITAL OUTLAY                          85,000       13,975.00       13,975.00            0.00       71,025.00    16.44
  66-OPERATING TRANSFERS                    831,205            0.00      207,801.25            0.00      623,403.75    25.00
      TOTAL 69-NON-DEPARTMENTAL           1,548,415       17,085.53      308,709.13            0.00    1,239,705.87    19.94
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

TOTAL EXPENSES                            6,069,185      318,227.65    1,758,905.01      565,823.44    3,744,456.51    38.30
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

REVENUE OVER/(UNDER) EXPENSES          (    131,935)     156,975.96      608,632.18 (    565,823.44)(    174,743.70)   32.45-
                                       ============  ==============  ==============  ==============  ==============  =======

20 of 23

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
10

MQuigg
Typewritten Text
10) Wastewater Utility - Encumbrances for annual chemical purchases and Neches Compost Facility have been posted.

MQuigg
Rectangle



Month 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019  2019/2020 
October 397,977.26     429,223.87     435,347.60     492,728.63     13.18% 500,457.73      1.57%
November 502,322.44     495,416.14     468,987.18     529,436.67     12.89% 540,716.07      2.13%
December 392,381.40     400,761.26     403,528.16     476,373.35     18.05% 495,068.35      3.92%
January 420,215.70     419,324.96     423,617.14     469,985.83     10.95% 485,233.02      3.24%
February 549,654.92     568,262.39     540,892.25     550,780.58     1.83% 709,652.51      28.84%
March 377,041.27     384,777.75     399,207.43     422,805.27     5.91%
April 409,054.22     391,226.90     399,760.46     425,562.16     6.45%
May 541,772.46     569,935.89     533,982.65     586,411.44     9.82%
June 387,333.00     425,204.18     399,232.27     494,094.61     23.76%
July 389,591.96     476,368.93     515,028.18     486,936.36     -5.45%
August 507,640.98     471,986.44     529,260.85     547,809.13     3.50%
September 455,423.08     415,978.94     453,877.45     502,255.76     10.66%

Total 5,330,408.69  5,448,467.65  5,502,721.62  5,985,179.79  8.77% 2,731,127.68   -

2019 - 2020: AEDC
2018 - 2019: 2019 - 2020 682,781.92      

Difference: 8.41% 2018 - 2019 629,826.27      211,822.62       1,889,478.80    

Fiscal YTD Compared to Prior Fiscal YTD: Allocation of Sales Tax Received:

2,731,127.68    City of Athens
2,519,305.06    2,048,345.76    

 350,000

 400,000

 450,000

 500,000

 550,000

 600,000

 650,000

 700,000

Sales Tax 5 Year Trend

2015/2016

2016/2017

2017/2018

2018/2019

2019/2020

21 of 23



October November December January February March April May June July August September TOTAL
2019 2019 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020

COA General Ledger 
General Fund

Current (10-4011) $216,777.92 $185,029.45 $1,456,298.78 $1,812,107.91 $317,196.03 $3,987,410.09
Delinquent (10-4012) $7,919.23 $3,441.59 $5,652.82 $4,423.93 $1,778.45 $23,216.02

Penalty & Interest (10-4015) $1,850.76 $1,007.19 $2,119.53 $5,012.35 $4,927.75 $14,917.58
Total GF $226,547.91 $189,478.23 $1,464,071.13 $1,821,544.19 $323,902.23 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,025,543.69

Debt Service
Current (20-4011) $42,231.29 $36,046.27 $283,708.05 $353,025.03 $61,794.38 $776,805.02

Delinquent (20-4012) $1,681.36 $702.62 $1,219.25 $934.93 $363.70 $4,901.86
Penalty & Interest (20-4015) $387.43 $198.72 $497.28 $991.51 $962.46 $3,037.40

Total Debt Service $44,300.08 $36,947.61 $285,424.58 $354,951.47 $63,120.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $784,744.28

Total Deposits $270,847.99 $226,425.84 $1,749,495.71 $2,176,495.66 $387,022.77 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,810,287.97

HC Monthly Summary
M&O

Current $216,777.92 $185,029.45 $1,456,298.78 $1,812,107.91 $317,196.03 $3,987,410.09
Discounts $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Penalty & Interest $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,964.92 $4,400.19 $8,365.11
Delinquent Taxes $7,919.23 $3,441.59 $5,652.82 $4,423.93 $1,778.45 $23,216.02
Penalty & Interest $1,850.76 $1,007.19 $2,119.53 $1,047.43 $527.56 $6,552.47

I&S
Current $42,231.29 $36,046.27 $283,708.05 $353,025.03 $61,794.38 $776,805.02

Discounts $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Penalty & Interest $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $772.42 $857.27 $1,629.69
Delinquent Taxes $1,681.36 $702.62 $1,219.25 $934.93 $363.70 $4,901.86
Penalty & Interest $387.43 $198.72 $497.28 $219.09 $105.19 $1,407.71

Adjustments-VIT Overage $0.00

Total Collections $270,847.99 $226,425.84 $1,749,495.71 $2,176,495.66 $387,022.77 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,810,287.97

Difference $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

a recon error.

Monthly Property Tax Reconciliation Worksheet

Amounts are shown for reconciliation purposes in the month of collection
rather than the month of deposit. This is done to be able to reconcile to the
County reports which include all collection for a particular month regardless 
of the deposit date. This is only an issue at the beginning and end of the 
month. Difference should be zero after entering all figures, if not zero there is 

22 of 23



HENDERSON COUNTY                        COLLECTIONS SUMMARY FOR:CITY OF ATHENS             02/01/2020 THRU 02/28/2020  PAGE    1
TA104NS RUN:03/02/2020 08:45                SUMMARY TOTALS

---------- CURRENT -----------     --------- DELINQUENT ---------     ------------ OTHER -----------

LEVY ..........      378,990.41    LEVY ..........      2,142.15      ATTY FEES .....        425.54
DISCOUNT ......             .00                                       COURT COST ....           .00
PENALTY .......        4,505.45    PENALTY .......        259.65      ABST FEES .....           .00
INTEREST ......          752.01    INTEREST ......        373.10      OTHER FEES ....           .00
TOTAL .........      384,247.87    TOTAL .........      2,774.90      TOTAL .........        425.54

M&O LEVY ......      317,196.03    M&O LEVY ......      1,778.45
M&O DISCOUNT ..             .00
M&O PENALTY ...        3,770.87    M&O PENALTY ...        215.57
M&O INTEREST ..          629.32    M&O INTEREST ..        311.99
M&O TOTAL .....      321,596.22    M&O TOTAL .....      2,306.01

I&S LEVY ......       61,794.38    I&S LEVY ......        363.70
I&S DISCOUNT ..             .00
I&S PENALTY ...          734.58    I&S PENALTY ...         44.08
I&S INTEREST ..          122.69    I&S INTEREST ..         61.11
I&S TOTAL .....       62,651.65    I&S TOTAL .....        468.89

TOTAL M&O .....      323,902.23
TOTAL I&S .....       63,120.54

REF LEVY/PI(MO)        225.22-
REF LEVY/PI(IS)         43.88-
REFUND PI ONLY.         11.89-     RET CHK PI ONLY           .00

DUE TO AGENCY .      387,022.77    RFND LEVY/PI ..        269.10-     RET CHK LEVY/PI      3,247.85-
DUE TO ATTY ...          425.54    REFUND ATTY ...           .00      RET CHK ATTY ..           .00
DUE TO ABST ...             .00    REFUND ABST ...           .00      RET CHK ABST ..           .00
DUE TO COURTS .             .00    REFUND COURTS .           .00      RET CHK COURTS.           .00
DUE TO OTHER ..             .00    REFUND OTHER ..           .00      RET CHK OTHER .           .00
DUE TOT REN PEN             .00    REF TOT REN PEN           .00      RCK TOT REN PEN           .00
  (AGENCY PART)             .00      (AGENCY PART)           .00        (AGENCY PART)           .00

(CAD PART)             .00         (CAD PART)           .00           (CAD PART)           .00

THE ESTIMATED TAXES HAVE BEEN PAID

______________________________

PEGGY GOODALL

______________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC

23 of 23



Agenda Memorandum 

AGENDA DATE:  March 23, 2020 

DEPARTMENT:  

CONTACT:   

SUBJECT:   

SUMMARY:  

BACKGROUND:   

ISSUE:

ALTERNATIVES: 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Administration 

City Manager    

Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Berry and 
Clay Construction for a guarantee maximum price of  $7,590,016.26 for 
construction of  the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center. 

Staff issued a request for proposal on 8/17/19. Sealed seal proposals were opened 
on September 20, 2019 for City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center Renovations 
for Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) for the Cain Center Project. Three (3) 
proposals were received. Berry and Clay Construction Managers received the 
highest scoring at this time Council authorized the City Manager to accept a 
proposal and negotiate a contract with Berry and Clay Construction as 
Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) for the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic 
Center Renovations proposal.    

This resolution will authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Berry 
and Clay Construction for a guaranteed maximum price of $7,590,016.26 for 
construction of the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center. 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a 
Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Berry and 
Clay Construction for a guaranteed maximum price of  $7,590,016.26 for 
construction of  the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R- 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ATHENS, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH 
BERRY AND CLAY CONSTRUCTION FOR A GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE OF 
$7,590,016.26 FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE CITY OF ATHENS CIVIC AND 
AQUATIC CENTER 

WHEREAS, Staff, advertised and received seal proposals on September 20, 2019 for City of 
Athens Civic and Aquatic Center Renovations for Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) for the 
Cain Center Project; and 

WHEREAS, three (3) proposals were received; and 

WHEREAS, after review and evaluation of the proposals, Berry and Clay Construction submitted 
the highest scoring proposal; and were awarded the contract as Construction Manager at Risk 
(CMAR) on 10-14-19 for the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ATHENS, TEXAS THAT the City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract 
with Berry and Clay Construction for a guaranteed maximum price of  $7,590,016.26 for 
construction of  the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Athens, Texas on this 23rd 
day of MARCH, 2020. 

___________________________________ 

Monte Montgomery, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
_____________________________ 
Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary 



























Agenda Memorandum 

AGENDA DATE:  March 23, 2020 

DEPARTMENT:  Administration 

CONTACT:   City Manager    

SUBJECT:   Discuss postponing the City of Athens General Election scheduled to be held on 
Saturday, May 2, 2020 until Tuesday, November 3, 2020. 

SUMMARY:  On March 18, 2020, Governor Greg Abbott authorized all political subdivisions 
holding general or special elections on May 2, 2020 to postpone their election to 
the November 3, 2020 uniform election date.  The postponement of the City’s 
election does not happen automatically; the governing body of the political 
subdivision MUST take an official action for such a change to be effective.     

BACKGROUND:   The purpose of the advisory is to provide guidance to local political subdivisions 
regarding their options for any general or special elections that have been ordered 
for the May 2, 2020 uniform election date. Pursuant to Section 418.016 of the Texas 
Government Code, the Governor has issued a proclamation suspending certain 
provisions of the Texas Election Code and the Texas Water Code to allow all local 
political subdivisions that are utilizing the May 2, 2020 uniform election date to 
postpone their election to the November 3, 2020 uniform election date.  

ISSUE: n/a 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: n/a 

RECOMMENDATION:  Discuss postponing the City of Athens General Election scheduled to be held on 
Saturday, May 2, 2020 until Tuesday, November 3, 2020. 



1

Bonnie Hambrick

From: Elections Internet <Elections@sos.texas.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, March 18, 2020 11:12 AM
To: Elections Internet
Subject: MASS EMAIL ADVISORY - (CSO-3492) - Advisory 2020-12- Actions for May 2, 2020 Uniform Election 

(COVID-19)

Sensitivity: Personal

Dear Election Officials:  

Pursuant to a proclamation issued earlier today, Governor Greg Abbott has authorized all political subdivisions holding 
general or special elections on May 2, 2020 to postpone their election to the November 3, 2020 uniform election 
date.  Please be advised that a postponement of your election does not happen automatically; the governing body of the 
political subdivision MUST take an official action for such a change to be effective.     

Today, our office has issued Advisory 2020‐12 – Actions for May 2, 2020 Uniform Election Date, providing guidance to 
political subdivisions seeking to move their May 2, 2020 election date in accordance with the Governor’s proclamation.  

We are in the middle of a public health crisis that is rapidly changing.  Through this crisis, our primary concern is the 
health and safety of voters, election workers, and our local election officials.  As the situation progresses, we stand ready 
to provide additional guidance regarding the upcoming elections. In the meantime, please continue to send us your 
questions so that we can revise and update our materials and guidance as necessary.   

Please let us know if you have any additional questions or concerns.  This advisory and other resources can be found on 
your Conducting Elections pages. 

Thank you for all that you do for Texas elections.  

Christina Worrell Adkins 
Legal Director  – Elections Division 
Office of the Texas Secretary of State 
1019 Brazos Street | Rudder Building, 2nd Floor | Austin, Texas 78701 
1.800.252.VOTE (8683) 
elections@sos.texas.gov | www.sos.texas.gov   
For Voter Related Information, please visit: 

The information contained in this email is intended to provide advice and assistance in election matters per §31.004 of 
the Texas Election Code.  It is not intended to serve as a legal opinion for any matter.  Please review the law yourself, and 
consult with an attorney when your legal rights are involved. 



The State of Texas 

Elections Division Phone: 512-463-5650 

P.O. Box 12060 Fax: 512-475-2811 
Austin, Texas 78711-2060 Dial 7-1-1 For Relay Services 
www.sos.texas.gov (800) 252-VOTE (8683)

Ruth R. Hughs 
Secretary of State 

ELECTION ADVISORY 

N0. 2020-12 

TO:  Election Officials 

FROM: Keith Ingram, Director of Elections 

DATE: March 18, 2020  

RE: Actions for May 2, 2020 Uniform Election Date 

The purpose of this advisory is to provide guidance to local political subdivisions regarding their options 
for any general or special elections that have been ordered for the May 2, 2020 uniform election date. 

Pursuant to Section 418.016 of the Texas Government Code, the Governor has issued a proclamation 
suspending certain provisions of the Texas Election Code and the Texas Water Code to allow all local 
political subdivisions that are utilizing the May 2, 2020 uniform election date to postpone their election 
to the November 3, 2020 uniform election date.  Pursuant to Texas Election Code 31.003 and 31.004, 

our office has issued the following guidelines for entities that choose to exercise this authority and 
postpone their election to the November uniform election date. 

Effect of Postponement of Election 

 Candidate Filings: By postponing their election date, the political subdivision is preserving all
candidate filings and ballot order actions that have already been taken.  The postponement does
not have the effect of reopening candidate filings.

o Deadlines related to Candidate Filings, Declarations of Ineligibility, Withdrawals
or Death: The deadlines that apply to the November 3, 2020 election would apply to all
candidates who are currently on the ballot for the May 2, 2020 election.

 Ballot By Mail Requests: All applications for a ballot by mail (ABBMs) that were filed for the

May 2, 2020 election that are marked annual would apply for the November 3, 2020 election.
All single use ABBMs that were submitted for reasons of age or disability would still be valid
for the November 3, 2020 election.  If a single use ABBM was submitted and indicated the
reason for voting by mail was due to absence from the county, this ABBM would not be valid

as the applicable election date has changed.  However, we would recommend that the political
subdivision send a letter to these voters along with a new ABBM in case the circumstances



ADV 2020-12 
Page 2 

surrounding their absence from the county are still valid or the voter is otherwise eligible to vote 
by mail.  

 Ballots by Mail: If a political subdivision has already sent out mail ballots, those mail ballots
that are returned would still be valid for the November 3, 2020 postponed election date.

 Election Records: All records, including candidate filings, applications to vote by mail, ballot

proofs, and printed ballots shall be retained and preserved.
o Printed Ballots: If your ballots have already been printed up, you may be able to reuse

them for November.  However, if you must change your ballot to reflect any corrections
or changes that occur between now and November, you would treat the original ballots

as you would in a traditional ballot correction and those ballots should be destroyed in
accordance with Section 52.0064 of the Texas Election Code.

 Requirement to use County Election Precincts in November 2020: Per Section 42.002 of
the Texas Election Code, county election precincts are required for all elections occurring in

November 2020.  You will need to work with your county election officer to determine whether
you need to make any modifications to your ballot in light of this requirement.

 Requirement for County Election Officer to contract with Local Political Subdivisions:
All county election officers are required to contract with local political subdivisions that

postponed their May 2, 2020 election and that request a contract for election services or a joint
election agreement with their county election officer pursuant to the Governor’s suspension of
certain Texas Election Code provisions.

 Office Hours: The relevant dates for maintaining office hours for election purposes will be

based on the November uniform election date rather than the May election date.  Under Section
31.122 of the Texas Election Code, those office hours will need to be maintained for at least
three hours each day, during regular office hours, on regular business days between September
14, 2020 and December 13, 2020.  However, these entities should post contact information for

individuals to contact their office about election-related issues during the timeframe that those
offices may be closed over the coming months.

 Holdovers in Public Office: Under Art. XVI, Sec. 17 of the Texas Constitution, the individuals

who currently hold public offices that are scheduled to be on the ballot on the May uniform
election date will continue to exercise the duties of those offices until the new officers take their
oaths of office, following the November uniform election date.

 Campaign Finance Filings: Please contact the Texas Ethics Commission for further guidance

on how these modified timelines will affect any campaign finance reporting requirements. Their
office can be reached at (512) 463-5800.

 Candidates on the ballot in both May and November:    For candidates that may be running
for two offices (one normally occurring in May and one normally occurring in November),

these candidates will not be removed from the ballot as they are separate elections that are
normally not occurring on the same date.

Required Action by Governing Body to Move Election Date 

In order to utilize this move, the governing body of the political subdivisions holding the elections must 
order the postponement of their election to the November 3, 2020 uniform election date.  The order for 
this official action should contain the following items: 

citysecretary
Highlight



ADV 2020-12 
Page 3 

 

1. A reference to the proclamation that authorizes the entity to postpone their election date, and 
the fact that the political subdivision is exercising this authority. 

2. Confirmation that the candidate filings for the election will remain valid for the election held 
on the November date and that the filing period will not be re-opened for the November election 
date. 

3. Confirmation that all ABBMs for voters that are voting by mail due to being over the age of 65 

or due to disability will still be valid for the postponed election, and that ABBMs for voters who 
submitted ABBMs based on expected absence from the county would not be valid for the 
postponed election. 

4. The major relevant dates for the November election, including the voter registration deadline 

(October 5, 2020), the deadline to submit an ABBM (October 23, 2020), and the dates for early 
voting (October 19, 2020 – October 30, 2020). 

 

Necessary Revisions to Order of Election 

In addition, the entity will need to meet by August 17, 2020 to make any necessary revisions to the 
entity’s original order of election.  Those revisions may include: 

1. The change to the date of the election; 
2. Any change in location of the main early voting location; 

3. Any changes to early voting dates and hours, including weekend early voting; 
4. Any changes to the identity of the early voting clerk and their contact information; or 

5. Any changes to branch early voting locations. 

If you are holding a bond election, you may need to make additional revisions to your order of election 
for that bond election.  If this is the case, we recommend reaching out to your bond counsel for 
additional guidance. 

 

Securing Election Records  

All election records should be stored and secured during the postponement period.  This may require 
your entity to use preservation methods that are similar to the methods you would use during the 
preservation period after the election has occurred.  This includes: 

 Storing returned ballots by mail in locked, sealed ballot boxes. 

 Securely storing any unused ballots. 

 Securely retaining any relevant election records, including candidate applications and 

ABBMs. 
 

Voting System Equipment 

If you are leasing voting system equipment from the county or directly from the vendor, then you may 
need to contact your vendor or your county regarding any necessary modifications to those lease 
agreements or to modify your procedures and timelines for receiving that equipment. 

 

Open Meeting Requirements  



ADV 2020-12 
Page 4 

 

The Governor has suspended and modified certain open meeting requirements pursuant to his disaster 
declaration.  These changes include allowing the entity to establish procedures for telephonic or 

videoconferenced meetings of governmental bodies that are accessible to the public.   

These procedures must include a process for members of the public to participate and address the 

governmental body in those meetings, notice to the public on the means of participating remotely, and 
access to the public for recordings of those meetings. 

For more information, please review the applicable documentation from the Governor’s Office or 
contact the Office of the Attorney General.  

 

Update Official Websites and Notify Media 

Any entities that are exercising this authority to postpone their election date must post notice on the 
entity’s website and should alert any local media organizations regarding this change to their election 

date. 

The entity must also provide notice to their county election officer regarding this change, as the county 

is required to post the entity’s notice of election on the county’s website no later than the 60th day 
before the date of the election under Election Code 4.008.  If that election date will be changing due to 
the entity’s decision to postpone the election then the entity must provide a revised notice to the county 
for posting on the county’s website. 

 

If you have any questions regarding this advisory, please contact the Elections Division at 1-800-252-
2216. 
 

KI:CA:CP 
 
 
 

 



Agenda Memorandum 

AGENDA DATE:  March 23, 2020 

DEPARTMENT:  

CONTACT:   

SUBJECT:   

SUMMARY:  

BACKGROUND:   

ISSUE:

ALTERNATIVES: 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Administration  

Elizabeth Borstad, City Manager  

Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a 
Resolution extending the City of Athens Disaster Declaration issued on March 19, 
2020 due to the imminent threat to Public Health and Safety as a result of the spread 
in  response to the Coronavirus (COVID – 19), Epidemic, as declared by the World 
Health Organization as a Pandemic on March 11, 2020. 

On March 19, 2020, Mayor Monte Montgomery, Mayor of the City of Athens, Texas 
issued a mayoral proclamation declaring a local disaster for public health emergency for 
the City of Athens, in response to help prevent and control COVID-19. 

Pursuant to Section 418.108(b) of the Texas Local Government Code, a state of 
disaster for public health emergency shall continue for a period of not more than 
seven days from the date of this declaration unless continued or renewed by the 
City Council of the City of Athens, Texas. 

n/a 

n/a 

n/a 

RECOMMENDATION:  Consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a Resolution 
extending the City of Athens Disaster Declaration issued on March 19, 2020 due to 
the imminent threat to Public Health and Safety as a result of the spread in  response 
to the Coronavirus (COVID – 19), Epidemic, as declared by the World Health 
Organization as a Pandemic on March 11, 2020. 



RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R- 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ATHENS, TEXAS  
EXTENDING THE DISASTER DECLARATION ISSUED BY MAYORAL 
PROCLAMATION ON MARCH 19, 2020 IN RESPONSE TO COVID-19 A 
PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS, on March 19, 2020, Mayor Monte Montgomery, Mayor of the City of Athens, 
Texas issued a mayoral proclamation declaring a local disaster for public health emergency for 
the City of Athens, in response to help prevent and control COVID-19; and  

WHEREAS, the mayoral proclamation declaring a local disaster for public health emergency is 
attached as Exhibit A. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 418.108(b) of the Texas Local Government Code, a state of 
disaster for public health emergency shall continue for a period of not more than seven days from 
the date of this declaration unless continued or renewed by the City Council of the City of 
Athens, Texas. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ATHENS, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1: The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated as if 
fully set forth herein. 
SECTION 2: The Declaration of the Public Health Emergency, which was signed and 
executed by the Mayor on Thursday, March 19, 2020, shall be renewed and shall 
continue until terminated by the City Council of the City of Athens, Texas in 
accordance with section 418.108 of the Texas Local Government Code. 
SECTION 3: Should any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this 
Resolution be declared unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, it 
is expressly provided that any and all remaining portions of this Resolution shall remain 
in full force and effect. The City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this 
Resolution, and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase thereof irrespective 
of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be 
declared unconstitutional or invalid. 
SECTION 4:  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 

DULY PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ATHENS, CITY, TEXAS, on this 23rd day of March, 2020. 

______________________________ 
Monte Montgomery, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary 



ATHENS, TEXAS  
DECLARATION OF LOCAL DISASTER 

DUE TO PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY 

WHEREAS the World Health Organization has declared the coronavirus, now designated COVID-19, as a 
global pandemic on March 11, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, COVID-19 was first detected in Wuhan, China in December 2019; and  

WHEREAS, symptoms of COVID-19 can range from mild to severe illness and cause further complications 
including death; and  

WHEREAS, the COVID-19 virus mainly spreads between people who are in close contact with one another 
through respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs or sneezes; and 

WHEREAS, the continued worldwide spread of COVID-19 presents an imminent threat of widespread illness, 
which requires emergency action for the protection of the people of Athens, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the implementation of mitigation strategies can slow the transmission of the disease; and  

WHEREAS, the Small Business Association (SBA) has designated COVID-19 as a qualifying event for the 
provision of Economic Injury Disaster Loans for businesses and private non-profits in affected communities. 

WHEREAS, this Declaration activates the City’s Emergency Management plan; and  

WHEREAS, the Mayor of Athens, Texas has determined that extraordinary measures must be taken to mitigate 
the effects of this public health emergency and to facilitate the efficient, rapid, and cooperative response to the 
emergency;  

WHEREAS, consistent with guidance from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), I 
recommend the postponement or cancellation of all public gatherings greater than 10 people. 

THEREFORE, Be it Proclaimed by the Mayor of Athens, Texas that;  

1. A local state of disaster is hereby declared for Athens, Texas, pursuant to of disaster is hereby declared
for Athens, Texas pursuant to §418.108(a) of the Texas Government Code.

2. The state of disaster shall continue for a period of not more than seven days from the date of this
declaration unless continued or renewed by the City Council of the City of Athens, TX pursuant to
§418.108(b) of the Government Code.

3. This declaration of a local state of disaster shall be given prompt and general publicity and shall be filed
promptly with the County Clerk, pursuant to §418.018(b) of the Government Code.

4. This declaration of a local state of disaster activates the City of Athens Emergency Plan, pursuant to
§418.018(b) of the Government Code.

5. This Declaration shall take effect immediately from and after its issuance.

ORDERED this the 19th day of March 2020. 

______________________________ 
Monte Montgomery, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

_____________________________ 
Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary 

Exhibit A



Agenda Memorandum 

Agenda Date:  March 23, 2020 

DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

CONTACT:   Audrey Sloan, Director of Development Services 

SUBJECT:   Consider the final reading of a request from Triton Athens I, LLC for approval of 
a site plan amendment for Lots 1-5, Block 1 of the Triton Athens Subdivision, R.A. 
Clark Survey A-171, also known as 1006, 1010 and 1012 East Tyler Street. 

SUMMARY:   The proposal is to amend the drive approach locations, the screening wall and the 
signage requirements for the Triton project. 

BACKGROUND:  This property is located on East Tyler Street and is currently under construction.  It 
is located in the Planned Development – 1 zoning district. 

The original site plan was approved in October of 2017.  A site plan amendment 
was approved in September of 2018.  A site plan amendment concerning the sign 
package for Lot 1 (Panda Express) was approved last month. 

The current proposal shows the following changes: 

o Updated drive approach locations as approved by TXDOT
o Increase screening wall height to 10’ (which is roughly 8’ above the

adjacent grade on the Triton side of the wall)
 Proposing the installation of a temporary fence during

construction.  The previous site plan required the permanent wall
to be installed prior to any vertical construction on the site.

o Proposing wall signs on 3 facades (north, east and west) with following
restrictions
 Street facing sign allowable square footage maintained under

current city sign ordinance
 East and west facing wall signs shall be no more than 50% of the

allowable square footage of the street facing sign
 East and west facing wall signs shall pertain to freestanding

buildings, not tenants – meaning the additional sign on multi-
tenant retail buildings will be at the developer’s discretion which
tenant is allowed to utilize that additional sign area.

 No “rear” facing signs are allowed
o Monument sign requirement is unchanged

The Future Land Use Plan designates this area as Low Density Residential. 



City of Athens, Texas 
Agenda Memorandum 

2 | P a g e
City of Athens, Texas 

The site plan is compliant with the City’s landscaping and parking requirements. 

The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval of the site plan 
amendment with the following stipulations: 
• Wall signs shall not be allowed on the east and west facades
• The screening wall shall tie into the Burger King wall and the top portion of

the wall shall be at or above 516’ (which is 10’ above adjacent grade on the
Triton side of the wall along the portion bordering the residential properties to
the south)

• The temporary fence would be allowed, but the permanent screening wall
shall be completed prior to any certificates of occupancy being issued for the
site

ISSUE: n/a 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: n/a 

RECOMMENDATION:  Consider approval of a site plan amendment for Lots 1-5, Block 1 of the Triton 
Athens Subdivision, R.A. Clark Survey A-171, also known as 1006, 1010 and 1012 
East Tyler Street. 



Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE O-___-20 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING MAP DESCRIBED IN CHAPTER I, 
SECTION 3 OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF CITY OF ATHENS, TEXAS, BY 
APPROVING AN AMENDED SITE PLAN FOR TRITON ATHENS I, LLC, PROVIDING 
A REPEALER CLAUSE, A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
WHEREAS, on the 2nd day of March 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of 
Athens, Texas after due notice and hearing did hereby vote to recommend approval of the amended 
site plan for the Planned Development of quick service restaurants with drive throughs and office 
and retail space, located on the below described property owned by Triton Athens I, LLC and with 
the stipulations that wall signs shall not be allowed on the east and west building facades, the screening 
wall shall tie into the screening wall on the neighboring property (Burger King) and the top of the wall shall 
be at the minimum elevation of 516 feet, and temporary fencing shall be allowed during construction, but 
the permanent wall shall be completed prior to the issuance of any certificate of occupancy for the property: 
 

Lots 1-5, Block 1 
Triton Athens Subdivision 

R. A. Clark Survey, Abstract 171 
also known as 1006, 1010 and 1012 East Tyler Street 

 
WHEREAS, on the 9th day of March 2020, the City Council of the City of Athens, Texas after 
due notice as required by law, held a public hearing for said site plan and heard from those opposed 
to said modification and those in favor of same. After the close of the public hearing, the ordinance 
amendment was read aloud for the first time as required by Article III, Section 3.11 of the City of 
Athens Charter.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ATHENS, TEXAS 
 
Section 1.  The Zoning Map described in Chapter I, Section 3 of the City of Athens Zoning 
Ordinance is hereby amended to grant the site plan approval for Triton Athens I, LLC as presented, 
with the added stipulations that wall signs shall not be allowed on the east and west building facades, 
the screening wall shall tie into the screening wall on the neighboring property (Burger King) and the top 
of the entire wall shall be at the minimum elevation of 516 feet, and temporary fencing shall be allowed 
during construction, but the permanent wall shall be completed prior to the issuance of any certificate of 
occupancy for the property. 
 
Section 2.  Should any clause, phrase, sentence section of this Ordinance be deemed invalid or 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, said finding shall not affect the remaining 
clauses, phrases, sentences or sections of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 3.  Any ordinance, resolution or order previously passed and/or adopted by the City 
Council, or any part thereof, if found to be in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, shall 



Page 2 of 2 
 

be resolved in favor of the terms and conditions of this Ordinance, and any prior conflicting 
ordinance, resolution or order or any part thereof, is hereby repealed to the extent of said conflict. 
 
Section 4.  This ordinance shall be and become effective from and after its adoption and publication 
in accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Athens, Texas. 
 
PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 23rd day of March 2020 at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the City of Athens, Texas, with the following record vote: 
 

Monte Montgomery, Mayor     ____ 
Ed McCain, Mayor Pro Tem      ____              
Aaron Smith, Councilmember    ____                 
Toni Clay, Councilmember          ____ 
Robert Gross, Councilmember  ____ 
 
                               
Voted in favor of the motion  ____    
Voted against the motion  ____ 
Motion carried    ____ 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Monte Montgomery, Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Bonnie Hambrick, City Secretary 



CRESTWAY DRIVE

KELLY DRIVE

RESTAURANT
3,000 SF

QSR
FFE-510.21

RESTAURANT
1,920 SF

FFE=509.62

RETAIL / OFFICE
5,407 SF

FFE 509.65

2,200 SF

PANDA
EXPRESS

GLA
6,224 SF
RETAIL

FFE=510.46

GLA
2,119 SF

RESTAURANT
FFE=510.46

EAST TYLER STREET / STATE HIGHWAY 31

FFE=508.70

RESTAURANT
1,920 SF

FFE=509.62

TV

DO NOT ENTER

DETENTION POND

DETENTION POND

W
O

O
D

 S
TR

EE
T

·

·

PD
 S

IT
E 

PL
AN

1

20
26

 R
EP

UB
LI

C
 D

RI
V

E 
 S

UI
TE

 B
  T

YL
ER

 T
EX

A
S 

75
70

1 
- (

90
3)

 5
34

-5
35

3 
- F

IR
M

 N
UM

BE
R 

F-
78

14
 - 

W
W

W
.B

EN
C

HM
A

RK
-E

N
G

IN
EE

RS
.C

O
M

B
E
N
C
H
M
A
R
K

D
E

S
IG

N
 

G
R

O
U

P
C

IV
IL

 /
 E

N
V

IR
O

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
 /

 P
L

A
N

N
E

R
S

TR
IT

O
N

 A
TH

EN
S 

I, 
LL

C
EA

ST
 T

YL
ER

 S
TR

EE
T

·

·

·

· “ ” 

TOTAL LOT AREA: 55,880 SF
TOTAL LANDSCAPING REQUIRED @ 10% OF 55,880 SF = 5,588 SF
TOTAL TREES REQUIRED @ 1/5000 OF 55,880 SF = 11

TOTAL LANDSCAPING: 5,588 SF 9,416 SF
TREES 11 EA 11 EA

NOTES:
1. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED BY A HOSE CONNECTION LOCATED WITHIN 50' OF ALL
LANDSCAPED AREAS OR AN UNDERGROUND AUTOMATIC  IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH FREEZE SENSOR
(DESIGNED BY SUCCESSFUL CONTRACTOR).

2. OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPING. ALL REQUIRED
LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND ORDERLY MANNER AT ALL TIMES.  PLANT
MATERIALS WHICH DIE SHALL BE REPLACED WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF SIMILAR VARIETY AND SIZE.

REQUIRED PROVIDED

TOTAL LOT AREA: 40,017 SF
TOTAL LANDSCAPING REQUIRED @ 10% OF 40,017 SF = 4,002 SF
TOTAL TREES REQUIRED @ 1/5000 OF 40,017 SF = 8

TOTAL LANDSCAPING: 4,002 SF 9,726 SF
TREES 8 EA 8 EA

NOTES:
1. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED BY A HOSE CONNECTION LOCATED WITHIN 50' OF ALL
LANDSCAPED AREAS OR AN UNDERGROUND AUTOMATIC  IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH FREEZE SENSOR
(DESIGNED BY SUCCESSFUL CONTRACTOR).

2. OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPING. ALL REQUIRED
LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND ORDERLY MANNER AT ALL TIMES.  PLANT
MATERIALS WHICH DIE SHALL BE REPLACED WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF SIMILAR VARIETY AND SIZE.

REQUIRED PROVIDED

TOTAL LOT AREA: 27,859 SF
TOTAL LANDSCAPING REQUIRED @ 10% OF 27,859 SF = 2,786 SF
TOTAL TREES REQUIRED @ 1/5000 OF 27,859 SF = 6

TOTAL LANDSCAPING: 2,786 SF 6,087 SF
TREES 6 EA 7 EA

NOTES:
1. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED BY A HOSE CONNECTION LOCATED WITHIN 50' OF ALL
LANDSCAPED AREAS OR AN UNDERGROUND AUTOMATIC  IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH FREEZE SENSOR
(DESIGNED BY SUCCESSFUL CONTRACTOR).

2. OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPING. ALL REQUIRED
LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND ORDERLY MANNER AT ALL TIMES.  PLANT
MATERIALS WHICH DIE SHALL BE REPLACED WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF SIMILAR VARIETY AND SIZE.

REQUIRED PROVIDED

TOTAL LOT AREA: 41,046 SF
TOTAL LANDSCAPING REQUIRED @ 10% OF 41,046 SF = 4,105 SF
TOTAL TREES REQUIRED @ 1/5000 OF 41,046 SF = 8

TOTAL LANDSCAPING: 4,105 SF 13,173 SF
TREES 8 EA 10 EA

NOTES:
1. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED BY A HOSE CONNECTION LOCATED WITHIN 50' OF ALL
LANDSCAPED AREAS OR AN UNDERGROUND AUTOMATIC  IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH FREEZE SENSOR
(DESIGNED BY SUCCESSFUL CONTRACTOR).

2. OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPING. ALL REQUIRED
LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND ORDERLY MANNER AT ALL TIMES.  PLANT
MATERIALS WHICH DIE SHALL BE REPLACED WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF SIMILAR VARIETY AND SIZE.

REQUIRED PROVIDED

TOTAL LOT AREA: 44,060 SF
TOTAL LANDSCAPING REQUIRED @ 10% OF 44,060 SF = 4,406 SF
TOTAL TREES REQUIRED @ 1/5000 OF 44,060 SF = 9

TOTAL LANDSCAPING: 4,406 SF 15,013 SF
TREES 9 EA 12 EA

NOTES:
1. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE IRRIGATED BY A HOSE CONNECTION LOCATED WITHIN 50' OF ALL
LANDSCAPED AREAS OR AN UNDERGROUND AUTOMATIC  IRRIGATION SYSTEM WITH FREEZE SENSOR
(DESIGNED BY SUCCESSFUL CONTRACTOR).

2. OWNER SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF ALL LANDSCAPING. ALL REQUIRED
LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN A NEAT AND ORDERLY MANNER AT ALL TIMES.  PLANT
MATERIALS WHICH DIE SHALL BE REPLACED WITH PLANT MATERIAL OF SIMILAR VARIETY AND SIZE.

REQUIRED PROVIDED
B

E
N

C
HM

A RK   DESIGN   G
R

O
U

P

 TEX A S

·

·

·

·

    SHALL BE SEEDED ACCORDING TO SEEDING SPECIFICATIONS.

4)  UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED, ALL PARKING STRIPS, ISLANDS AND BERMS SHALL BE
    SODDED.

1)  ALL PLANTED AREAS SHALL RECEIVE A 4" LAYER OF HARDWOOD MULCH OVER 10 MIL
    FABRIC EQUAL TO "WEEDBLOCK" BY "EASY GARDENER".

2)  ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT RECEIVING PLANTINGS (INCLUDING RIGHT-OF-WAYS) 

3)  ALL ISLANDS SHALL BE MULCHED
SYMBOLQUANTITY

AS SHOWN GRASS

SYMBOLQUANTITY COMMON NAMECALLOUT SCIENTIFIC NAME SIZE & CONDITION

SCIENTIFIC NAME

Cynodon dactylon

CALLOUT COMMON NAME

Common Bermuda
Grass

SIZE AND CONDITION

refer to specifications
Sod

LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL PLANT QUANTITIES

26 4'-5' spread, B&B straight trunk
3" caliper, 10'-12' Ht./RED OAK Shumard Red Oak Quercus shumardii

Holly, yaupon llex vomitoria22
YAUPON
HOLLY 4'-5' spread, B&B straight trunk

3" caliper, 10'-12' Ht./

F:
\P

ro
je

ct
s\

20
17

\2
01

7.
00

5 
Tr

ito
n 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

ns
 - 

At
he

ns
\d

w
g\

20
17

.0
05

.d
w

g,
 2

/2
8/

20
20

 1
0:

46
:5

1 
AM

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' TALL BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF-10 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SF-10 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PD-1 R ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PD-1 R ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PD-1 R ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' TALL BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT ENTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT ENTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DO NOT ENTER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE THRU

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' TALL MASONRY  WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1 40,017 Sq. Ft.  0.919 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4 41,046 Sq. Ft.  0.972 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3 27,859 Sq. Ft.  0.640 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5 44,060 Sq. Ft.  1.011 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2 55,880 Sq. Ft.  1.283 Ac.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURGER KING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  KELLY DRIVE WILL NOT BE USED FOR ENTRY/EXIT INTO THE SITE DURING OR AFTER CONSTRUCTION. OWNER WILL INSTALL A TEMPORARY SCREENING WALL DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE TEMPORARY WALL WILL BE REPLACED WITH A PERMANENT MASONRY WALL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHARED ACCESS  BETWEEN THIS SITE  AND APPLEBEE'S MAY  BE CONSTRUCTED AT A LATER DATE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR BIDDING PURPOSES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOHN G. MITCHELL, P.E.,

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTRATION NO. 92699 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT IS RELEASED FOR THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PURPOSES OF INTERIM REVIEW AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMENTS UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright 2004, Benchmark Design Group, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBMITTAL / REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
JGM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEBRUARY 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
2017.005

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-9-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
JGM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE INFORMATION PROPERTY OWNER: TRITON ATHENS I, LLC PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1006, 1010, 1012 E. TYLER ST.  ZONING (EXISTING):  PD-1 R ZONING (PROPOSED):  PD-1 R SETBACKS: AS SHOWN HEREON ARCHITECT: M SPIRE DESIGN ACREAGE OF PROJECT:  4.79 AC. (208,863 SF) BUILDING AREA:   22,790 SF 22,790 SF DENSITY OF PROJECT:   10.91% LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 1,2,3,4,5 BLOCK 1  TRITON ATHENS SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURES PROPOSED DUMPSTER ENCLOSURES WILL BE 6' TALL MASONRY WALL SCREENING PROPOSED 10' TALL MASONRY WALL ADJACENT TO RESIDENTIAL AREAS SIGNAGE (1) MONUMENT SIGN PER LOT 50 S.F. MAX. / 7' HIGH MAX / 10' SETBACK FROM EDGE OF STREET BLDG SIGN:  PROPOSE BLDG SIGNAGE ON (3) FACADES, STREET FACING, EAST FACADE, AND WEST FACADE WITH THE FOLLOWING RESTRICTIONS:  THE STREET FACING SIGN ALLOWABLE SQ FT MAINTAINED UNDER CURRENT CITY SIGN ORDINANCE THE (2) ADDITIONAL SIGNS (EAST AND WEST FACADES RESPECTIVELY) SHALL BE NO MORE THAN 50% OF THE ALLOWABLE SQ FT OF THE STREET FACING FACADE ALLOWABLE SIGN SQUARE FOOTAGE.  THE (2) ADDITIONAL SIGNS (EAST AND WEST FACADES RESPECTIVELY) SHALL PERTAIN TO FREE STANDING BUILDINGS, NOT TENANTS - MEANING THE ADDITIONAL SIGN ON MULTI-TENANT RETAIL BUILDINGS WILL BE AT THE DEVELOPER'S DISCRETION WHICH TENANT IS ALLOWED TO UTILIZE THAT ADDITIONAL SIGN AREA.  NO “REAR” FACING SIGNS ARE ALLOWED. REAR” FACING SIGNS ARE ALLOWED. FACING SIGNS ARE ALLOWED. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY OWNER TRITON ATHENS I, LLC 1845 WOODALL ROGERS FRWY DALLAS, TEXAS 75201 972-388-5431 SITE DEVELOPMENT PLAN PREPARED BY BENCHMARK DESIGN GROUP, LLC GREG MITCHELL, P.E. 2026-B REPUBLIC DRIVE TYLER, TEXAS 75701 903-534-5353

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN INFORMATION PARKING TOTAL BUILDING AREA = 22,790 SF  RESTAURANT @ 1 SPACE PER 100 SF OF 11,159 SF = 112 SPACES  RETAIL @ 1 SPACE PER 300 SF OF 11,631 SF = 39 SPACES    REQUIRED   PROVIDED REQUIRED   PROVIDED PROVIDED TOTAL PARKING   151 SPACES  211 SPACES 151 SPACES  211 SPACES 211 SPACES ACCESSIBLE PARKING  7 SPACES   12 SPACES7 SPACES   12 SPACES12 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE TABULATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: NO METAL BUILDINGS WITHOUT FULL CLADDING OF STONE, STUCCO, OR MASONRY IS ALLOWED.  NO EIFS PRODUCTS ARE ALLOWED. NIGHTTIME NOISE IS LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN 58 dB AT ANY BOUNDING PROPERTY LINE NIGHTTIME LIGHTING IS LIMITED TO NO MORE THAN 0.25 FOOTCANDLES AT ANY BOUNDING PROPERTY LINE WITH RESIDENTIAL. EMC SIGNS ARE NOT ALLOWED UNLESS SPECIFIED ON THE SITE PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDCOVER



Site Plan 
Amendment

Applicant: 
Bill McMahon

Lot 1-5, Block 1 of Triton 
Athens Subdivision

1006, 1010 & 1012 E Tyler St



Site Plan 
Amendment

Applicant: 
Bill McMahon

Lot 1-5, Block 1 of Triton Athens 
Subdivision

1006, 1010 & 1012 E Tyler St

Surrounding property owners 
within 200 ft
















	Agenda  - Pg. 1 
	Agenda - Pg. 2 
	Agenda - Pg. 3 
	6) Consent Agenda Items a -d
	8)	Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a contract with Berry and Clay Construction for a guaranteed maximum price of  $7,590,016.26 for construction of  the City of Athens Civic and Aquatic Center 
	9)	Discuss postponing the City of Athens General Election scheduled to be held on Saturday, May 2, 2020 until Tuesday, November 3, 2020 


	10)	Discuss, consider and take action, as necessary, concerning the approval of a Resolution extending the City of Athens Disaster Declaration issued on March 19, 2020 due to the imminent threat to Public Health and Safety as a result of the spread of the Coronavirus (COVID – 19), Epidemic, as declared by the World Health Organization as a Pandemic on March 11, 2020 
	11)	Consider final reading of an Ordinance concerning a request from Triton Athens I, LLC for approval of a site plan amendment for Lots 1-5, Block 1 of the Triton Athens Subdivision, R.A. Clark Survey A-171, also known as 1006, 1010 and 1012 East Tyler Street



